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PEPSICOLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Km. 29 Nafional Road, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City 1773 Philippinas
Tel No.: (632) 850-70011 = Fax No,: {632) BRO-7028

October 31, 2008

THE PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE, INC,
Philippine Stock Exchange Centre

Exchange Road, Ortigas Center

Pasig City

Attention: Atty. Pete M. Malabanan
Head, Disclosure Department

Re: Amended SEC Form 17-A
Gentlemen:

We are filing the attached Amended SEC Form 17-A. of Pepsi Cola Products Philippines
Inc. in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) letter dated
October 13, 2008 which we received last October 23, 2008. The Amended SEC Form
17-A. incorporates comments specified on the said SEC letter. The changes made on the
Amended SEC Form 17-A is summarized in Annex 1 for easy reference.

Kind regards.

Very truly yours,

gnomfin [V
HONEYLIN C. CASTOLO
Officer-in-Charge




Annex 1

The changes made on the Amended SEC Form 17-A pertains mainly to addltmnal
information and certain revisions on the following matters:

a.

b.

o
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Apgregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as
of June 30 and Sept 30, 2008

Form and date of organization

Any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings

Any matertal reclassification, merger, consolidation or purchase or sale of a
significant amount of assets

Principal products indicating their relative con‘mbu‘tlon of group of related
products to total revenues

Percentage of revenues from foreign sales

Status of any publicly-announced new products which are in the planning or
prototypes stage

Customers

Principal terms and expiration of any patents, trademarks, copyrights, licenses,
franchises, concessions, and rovalty agreements |
Government approvals of principal products

Effect of existing or probable governmental regulations on the business
Research and development costs

. Costs and effects of compliance with environmental laws

Properties, leases and any mortgage, lien or encumbrance over the properties
Results of operations for fiscal year 2008 versus 2007 and 2007 versus 2006
Financial condition and liquidity

Material commitments for capital expenditures

Factors that may impact company’s operations and seasonality aspects
Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from continuing
operations ‘

Information on independent accountant
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 SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
'SEC FORM 17-A, AS AMENDED
. ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION1T
oF THE SEGURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES
|, For the fiscal year anded 30 June 2008

2. SEC Identification Number ooouisoges 3. BIR Taxidentification No. 000-168-541

4. Exactname of. isé.uer &% Speci‘ﬁed‘in its charter: FEF..'-”ilJCOLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC. ‘

5. Province, Country of che‘r‘ju.risdiction of 6. Industry Classification Code: - “
* incorporation of organization: Philippines ~ (S8EC Use Only) '

K. 29 National Road Tunasan, Muntintupa GCity ~Postal Code: 1773

7. Address of principal office:
8. lssuer's telephone numbar, including area code: (632) 850-7901 to 20

| 9. Former name, forrinar ‘address, and fc.irmar fiscal year, if changed sinde jast report: not aggl‘icabla .

10. Securities régistefed pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class “Number of Shares of Common Stock

‘ ‘ Outstanding and Amount of Debt QOutstanding
: : ‘ ‘ as of June 30, 2008

Common Shares of Stock ' . 3,693,772,279

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on @ Stock Exchange?
Yes[x] Naol ]

If yes, state the name of such stock axchange and the clagses of securities fisted therain:
Phitippine Stock Exchange - Common Shares of Stock ‘ .

12, Check whether the issue: -

() has fled 2l raports required to be filed by Section 17 ofthe SRC and SRG Rule 17,1 thereunder |
or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of The
Corporation Code of the Philippines dunng the preceding tweive (12) months (or for 3uch shorier

pefiod that the registrant was required to file such raports);
Yes[x] Nof | - B

() The Registrant has hean subject to such fiing requifements for the past ninety (90) days.
CYes{x] Nol[l | '

3. Aggregaie market value of the vating stock heid by non-affiliates of the ragistrant. -
R3.367 million {June 30, 2008); and P2.801 mitlion {September 30, 2008)




DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

14 The ‘following' documents are incorporaté.d in this fepcxn?t: ) |
sy Audited Financial Statements as of June 30, 2008 attached as Exhibit | hereof; and
(o) . Statemeniof Management Responsibility attached as Exhibit [ hareof. -




1)

a.

(2)

PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

" {TEM 1. BUSINESS

Business Development

Form and Date of Or'gantzatiori--‘ S

The Corporation was registered with the Phil. Exchange Commission on March 8, 1989 primarily fo .

engage n manufacturing, .zale sand distribution of carbonated soft-crinks and non-carbonated

‘bevarages to retail, wholesale, restaurants and bar trades.

The'Cc;rpnratioh's associaté (f()rmérly a‘whoﬁy-owned subsidiary), Nadeco Realty Cdrpﬂra‘tidn, 'waé

incorporated under Philipping laws primarily to engage in the roal estate business, On February 1,

2007, a change in NRC's capital structure decreased the Company's ownership interest to 40%.

Bankruptey, Receivership of Similar Proceedings

The Corporation and its associate ara not involved in any bankruptcy, receivership or simitar

proceedings.

Material Reciassification, Marger, ‘Consalidation or ‘Purchase or Sale éf -a Significant Amo-unt‘ of

Assats (not ordinary) over the past three years

The Corporation and its associate have not made any material reciassifications nor entered info @
merger, sonzolidation or purchase or sale of significant amount of assets (not ordinary) in the past ‘

thrae years.
Buslness of lssue

Principal products

The Corporation is @ licensed bottier of PepsiCo beverages in the Philippines. it manufactures 2
range of carbonated soft drinks and non-carbonated beverages that includes wall-known brands such
as Pepsi, Diet Pepsi, Pepsi Max, 7Up, Diet 7Up, Mountain Dew, Gatorade, Lipton lced Tea,
Tropicana, Prope! and Sting. ‘ ‘ : , '

Nat salas Corporation Corparation Group
2008 2007 2006
] Carbonated soft drinks 210,408 210774 B9 762
Non-carbonated beverages 2,576 2,142 1,730
| Total ' R 12,981 =12,H5 210,882
Segment result* Corporation Corparation Group
- 2008 2007 2006
Carbonated soft drinks R 3,300 23,650 23234 |
Non-carbonated beverages 817 606 506
Total ‘ g7 R4,156 23740 |

*  Segment expanses wers allocatad thraugh the parce
Foreign sales -

Foreign sales rapresent 0.4%,
respectively: R

0.01% and 0.0

ntage of aach reporiabis segment's nef salas ovar the

totat nat sales.

2% of. total net sales in 2008, 2007, and 2008, .



c.

Distribution methods of the products

The Corporation's sales voiumes depend on the reach of its distribution network, It increases the-

raach of distribution system by adding routes and increasing penetration by adding outlets on @xisting

routes that currently do not stock its products. . it refies on a number of channels to réach ratail

outlets, including direct sales, distributors and wholesalers. .

The backbone of the distribution” system is what is referred to as “Entrep;enéaufial Distribution
gystern,” which consists of independent contractors who sarvice ona or More sales “routes,” usually

by truck, selling directly 0 retail outiets and callecting emptly retumable bottles (RGBs).

it also employs its own sales force, which principally seils to what is referred to as the “odern .tfad,é"' -

channel, consisting largely . of supermarkets and restaurant and convenience store chains. Most of

thase sales are credit sales that are fulfilled by third party distributors. In addition, it sells products o

third party wholesalers and distributors, which an sell them 10 retail outlets.

An important éspect of the distribution system 13 the in’r'rastmcture-intensive process of selling and
delivering RGB products to’ many thousands of smail retailers, including  sari-sari stores and

cannderias. The efforts to increase the reach of our distribution network require significant -

investments in distribution . infrastructure such as additional  trucks, refrigeration equipment,
warehouse space and a farger “float’ of glass boties and plastic shells, as well as higher costs for
additional sales and distribution staff. R C o

publicly-announced new product

The Corparation has no pUblic:ly-annDunced new products that are inthe plaﬁning or prototype stage.

Competition

The beverage market ii the Philippines 8 highty competitive. Competition 18 primarily through
advertising and marketng programs that craste hrand awareness, price and price promotions, new
product development, digtribution and availability, packafging and customnar goodwill.

Competitors in the carbonated soft drinks (CSD) marked are The Coca-Cola Company, Agiawide
Refrashments Corporation, and Asia Brewery Incorporated. The substantial investment in multipla
plants, distribution infrastructure and systems and the float of RGBs and plastic shells required to
operate 3 pation-wide beverage husiness using RGBS represent a significant barrier to potential
cornpetitors in widening their reach. a ' ' ‘

The market for non-carhonated beverages (NCB) is more fragmented. Major competitors in- this
market are The Coca-Cola Company, San Migue! Corparation, Universal Robina Corparation, Zesto

Corporation, amoeng othars. In recent years, the market has been relatively fluid, with frequent
product launches and shifting corisumer preferences. These trends are sxpected to continue.

3ources and availability of raw materials

Over haif of total costs comprise ‘phrchases of raw materials. Largest purchases are sugar and

peveragé concentrates. The Corporation purchases all sugar requirements-d,omesticaily hecause of

import restrictions imposed by the Philippines‘government‘ It purchases beverage concentrates from’

PapsiCo and Papst Lipton at prices that are fixed as & parcentage of the wholesale prices charged fof -

the finished products, subject to a price fioor in U.S. dofiars.

Anather substantiai cost is packaging. The major componeants of this expense are purchases of PE‘!".
pre-forms, which are converted into PET. pottles at the plants, nonureusabla glass bottles, aturninum
aans and closures. It also makes ragular purchases of RGBS to maintain float at appropriate levels.




purchases of each of these materials are from suppliers-based in the Philippines.

Asia, usuaily under short term, fixed price contracts.

 Customers

'The Corporation has.

convenience storas, bars, sari-sari stores and carinderias.

s broad customer base nationwide.

Transactions with and/or Dependence on Related Parties

Plaage refer to item 13 of this report.

Patents, trademarks, copyrights, licensas, fran

The Corporation does not own -any intellectual property that 18 material fo the
the Corporation is authorized
relevant PepsiCo affiliates,

- Exclusive Bottling Appointments,
trademarks owned by PepsiCo, the
and trademarks, Unilaver N.V.

yaars

Dew, 7Up, Diet 7Lip, Gatorade, Prop

Trademark licensés
Property Office. Cerificates of Registration filed after
from the registration date unless
affactive for 20 years from the registratio
Certificates of Regisiration a3 well as pen
&, Tropicana,

January 1998

sOoner cancelied, while those
n date. The fa

ding applications for Pepsi,
Sting and Lipton lce

Fe

to use bran
and, in the case of the Lipt
are ragistered with the Philippine inteflectual
are affective for a period of 10

blo balow SUMMArizZes

chises, concessions, and royalty agreaments

and in ather parts of
Tts custorﬁer:s include e.upermad{éts,‘,
business. Under the

ds and the associated
on brand

filed before January 1998 are

Pepsi Max,
d Tea.

most of the current
Mirinda, Moun-tain

Expiration

-

e
— FilingDate
h February 7, 1994

June 23, 2020

1005 Papsi Logo in Color

1996 Pepsi Logo in Colar

April 24, 1897

February 24, 2005

August 26, 1957

September 28, 2023

PCPRI Pepsi  Cola
ines, Inc. and LGgo

Products August 26, 2008

_Panding application

Oclober 18, 2004

Mirinda

Mountain Dew

January 23, 1986
~ June 5, 2000 . 4

Mountain Dew Logo

June 5, 2000

Fabruary 19, 2017

May 10, 2009
January 18, 2014
October 30, 2014

[ August 28, 1980

[ Saptember 22, 2003

February 18, 2008
August 28, 2015 '

[ February 26, 2007

Pending aEplication

November 27, 1992
Fabruary 9, 2004

August 28, 2015

June 28, 2015 ‘

January 17, 2015 '

Auquat 23, 2002
Decembar §, 1990 August 18, 2013
Decernber 14, 1082 January 14, 2020

March 10, 2006

June 18,2017 _

Lipton

T March 28, 2003

June 8, 2016

Lipton Splash dasign

Dacember 18, 2003

May 28, 2017

"Lipton |¢e Tea Logo in Color

Pending application

November 17, 2006

The Corporation producss its products under ficenses from PepsiCo and depends upen pepsiCo ta

provide concentrates and access o new products.
PepsiCo and cedtain of its affiliates are suspended,
would have a material adverse effect on tha business 2

Tha Corporation has a ‘strong relationship vy)ith PapsiCo. Referto

ragarding transactions with PepsiCo.

Thus, if the Exclusive

Bottiing Appointments with
terminated or not renewed for any reason, it
nd financial results. :

ftem 13 of this report for details of




Govémmant approvals of principal products

As a producer of beverages for human consumption, the Corparation is subject to the regulation by
the Bureau of Food and Drugs (BFAD) of the Philippines, which is the’ policy formulation and
monitoring arm of the Department of Health of the Philippines on matters pertaining 1o fond and the
formulation of rules, regulations, standards and minimum guidelines on the safety and qualify of food
and food products as well as the branding and \abeling. requirements for these products. S

It is the Corporation's policy 1O register all locally-produced products for local market distripution. 1t
also has certificates of product registration from BEAD for the products imported. Each of the plants
has a valid and current License 10 Operate as a Food Manufacturer of Non-Alcoholic Beverages from
- BEAD. These licenses aré renewad annually in accordance with applicable'regulations.' Any finding
and gaps found during the regulatory sudit and inspection are thoroughly discussed with- BFAD
inspectors and compliance commitments are ra-igsued. There are no pending findings of gaps that
are material or that may materially affect the operation of each plant or all the piants as & whale. -

The Corporation is &ls0 ragistered as a Distributor and Exporter of finished products. It has been

racognized by BFAD as 8 Good Manufacturing Practice Certified Plant. .-
Effect of existing of prabable gove,rnmental requlations on the‘business y

The Corporation’s production facilities are subject to anvironmentat reguiation under a variety of
national and local laws and requlations, which, in particular, control the emissions of air poliutants,
water, and noise.. it is raguiated by two major government agencies, namely, tha ‘Department of
Environment and Matural Resources (DENR) and the Laguna Lake Development Authority (LLDA).

We are continually complying with environmental laws and regutations, such as fhe wastewater

treatment plants as required by the Department of Environment and Natural Resources and Laguna -

Lake Development Authority.

. \While the foregoing agencies actively monitor the Corporation’s compliance with environmental
requlations as well as investigate complaints prought by the public, it i3 required to police its own
compliance and prevent any incident that could expose the Carparation to fines, eivil or even criminal
sanctions, considerable capital and other costs and expense for refurbishing OF updrading
anvironmental compliance systern and resources, third party liability such as claan-ups, injury fo
communities and individuals, including, 0538 of life. ‘ '

Research and development |

The research and development costs amounted to about R177,500, 2496,300, £223,900, in fiscal
years 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. ‘ .

_ Costs and effects of compliance with environmental faws

Compliance with all applicable anvironmental aws and regulations, such as the Environmental lmpact
gtatament System, the Poliution Control Law, the Laguna Lake Davelopment Authority Act of 1966,
the Clean Alr Act and the Solid Waste Management Act has not had, and in the Comaration’s
opinion, is not expacted to have a material effect on the capital expenditures, eamings or competitive
position. Annuaily, it invests about Php39 million and Php33 million in wastewater treatment and air

potlution abatement, respectively, in its faclities.
Employees .

As of June 30.‘ 2008, the.i:drpuration employs approximately 2,554 people. The following table
provides a preakdawn of permanant employee headcount, divided by function, as of June 30, 2008




- Total
"Number of

Employags

General and
- Adminigtrative

Salas and
Digtribution

Manufa
440

in addition, i generally has batween 1,472 and 1,635 casual employess working in the business at |

any time, mostly as manual laborers. It contracts with third party mangower and services firms for the
supply of {his labor. The numbar of casual employeas it raquires varies seasonally, with generally
higher numbers during peak month
amploy2es. -

a union. The Corporation 15 @ party to 14 colleclive ‘bargaining agreements, with separate
agreements for the sales and the .nnndsates forcas in SOME Cased. The collective: bargaining
agreements gonaln ‘economic and non-econormic provisions (such as saary increage and
- performance incentive, sale commission, laundry allowance, per diem, hereavernent assistance,
union leave, calamity. ipan, and assistance 10 amployees' cooperative), which generaliy have & term

Al of the permanent praduction employees at the bottling plants and sales offices are representéd by

of three years and remain pinding on e sucsessors—in—i.nterest of the parties, while the

 rapresentation aspect i valid for five years.

The Corporation believes triat the relationship with poth unionized and non-unionizad employees are

good. it has not experienced any work stappages due 10 industrial dispules since 1999.

1t places significant emphasis on fraining 'pefsonne! to increase their skil lavels, ensure consistent
application of procedures and to instill an appreciation of corporate values. It operates “Papsi

University,” a full-time training facility consisting of four classrooms. it has adoptad a compensation

policy which it believes 10 pe competifve with industry standards in the Philippinas. Salaries and
benefiis are reviewed periodically and adjusted to retain current employees and aftract new
gmployees. performance is raviewed annually and employees are rewarded basad on the attainment

of pre-defined objectives.

The Corporation operates 2 defined benefit pension scheme for all of the regulal and full-ime
employees. |t maintains a fund to pay future benefits under the pian, and carry a liability on the
patance sheet reprasenting the difference between the vatue of the plan assets and the present value
 of actuarially-assessed defined panefit abligations. ' |

. "Maijor Risks

Sales and pmﬁtabiiity are affected by the overall performance of the Philippiné ecanamy, the natural
apasonality of sales, the competitive environment of the beverage market in the Philippines, as well
as changes in cost gtructures, among ather factors.

The high inflation ragime (at 11.4% in June, 9.6% in May. bringing about the averége for.the past six

months to 7.6%) that prevailed during the 4™ quarter of fiscal year 2008, normally our peak quarter,
tock its toll on the Philippine economy a3 the Gross Domestic product grew by only A6%, a

- considerable decealaratidn from the 8.3% increase recorded 1ast year. Consumer spend'mg; slackenad

to 3.4% from 5 6% a year ago, as it succurnbed to the effoct of high prices. Lower disposable income
of the Philippine population normally leads to & general fall in the demand for beverage products.

Curthermore, the racord high infiation rate brought about by the oil and food price hike increased

freight and power COStS with a multiplier effecton matarials and other costs.

.‘ aales volume are also affected by the weather, generally peing higher in tha .nbt, dry months from |
March through June and. lower during the welter monsoon months of July tnhrough Qctober.’ In

addition, the Philippines is exposed to risk of typhoons during the mMonsoan period. Typhoons usuaily

rasult in subétantialiy raduced sales in the sifectad area, and have, in the, past, interrupted production

 of March throughi June. As of June 30, 2008, it had 1,635 casual |

T T



at the plants in affacted areas. While these factors lead io & natural seasonality in salas,
unseasanable weather could also significantly affect sales and profitability compared 0 previous
- enmparable periods. Sales during the Chastmas/New Yaar holiday period in late Decamber tand o
be higher as well. - For the manth of May 2008, nofmatly & peak month, there wers four cyclonaes in
May 2008, causing above average rainfalts throughout tne country and cooler pormal surmmear $eason
at 25 degrees compared to the normal 28 degrees. - S L

The Philippine CSD market experienced stagnant of daclining sales volume growin due to the
maturity of the market. On the other hand, the Philippine NCB market is growing dug to increasing
consumer preference for beverages associated with health and ‘weliness, in particular juices, iced
~ teas, sports drinks and water. The CSD and NCB markets are both highly competitive. The actions

of competitors as well as.the Corporation's own continuous efforts on pricing, marketing, promotions,
and new praduct devalopment affect sales. Soma of the smaller competitors have lower cost bases
than the Corpoeration and price their products lower than ours, Thus, in addition to the cost of
producing and distributing. qur beverages, sales prices are greaty affected by the availability and
price of campeting brands in the market. Lo ‘ S

' 'AI‘I of the Corporation's sales are denaminated in Philippine pasos. Howaver, some of the significant
costs, such as purchases of packaging materials are danominated in United States dollars. Some of
other costs, which are incurred in Philippine pesos, can also be affected by flustuations in the

axchange rate between the Phifippine peso and United States dollars.. As a result, mavements in the -

exchange rate between Philippine pesos and other currencies can have a significant effect on the
results of operations. ' : : L : .

The business requires a significant supply of raw matarials and energy. The cost and supply of these
. materials could be adversely affacted by changes in the world market prices on sugar, crude off,
ajurminum, tin, PET resins, among others, Although direct purchases of tuel are relztively smali as a
proportion of tatal costs, the Corporation is exposed 1o fluctuations in the price of oil through the
dependence on freight and delivery services, (hanges in materials prices generally affect the
 competiiors as well,. . o ‘ ' o '

Margins differ between beverage products and package types and sizes. Exciuding packaging,
production costs are similar across the range of carbonated beverages, but vary befween non-
carbonated beverages.  Packaging costs vary, with RGBS being less expensive than PET, aluminum
cans ar non-returnable glass. The incremental cost of praducing farger-sized serves in the same
package type is proportionately lower than the increased volume, creating opportunities to achiave
higher margins where customers perceive value in terms of volume. ‘ :

As 2 result of the factors discussed above, the marging the Corporation earns on the products can be
substantiaily differant, and the margins can change in boih absolute and relative tarms from perod to

period.  While the Corporation attempts to adjust its product and package mix to maximize

profitability, changes in consumer demand and the compatitive jandscape Gan have a significani
impact on mix and therefore profitability. ‘

The Corporation is alse subject to credit risk, liquidity risk and various market risks, indiuding risks
from changes in commodity prices, intarest rates and currency exchange rates (please refer fo Notes

to Fiscal Year 2008 Audited Financial Statements, Note 4 on Financial Risk Management and Note

25 on Financial lnstruments for detailed discussian).

~ The Corporation is not aware of any events that wilt trigger direct of contingent financial obligation
that is material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation. To the
Corporation's knowledge, there are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangsment,
obligations (including confingent obligations), and other relationship of the Corporation wilh
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.




[TEM 2. PROPERTIES

As a foreignmowned company, the Corporation is not permitted to own land in the Fhiippines. ' Hencs, it
leases the land of which the bottiing plants, warehousas and sales offices are located. - ‘

The head office and main bottling plant are jocated at Km. 2g- Natienal Road, Barangay Tunasan,
Muntinlupa City. The premises are teased from certain members of the Batista farmily. On 16 December
2002, it extended the lease for anather 12 years, to gxpire on November 24, 2014, and renawable at the
option of the parties. It pays manthly rent, which is valued per squaré meter and increases over the
yaars, plus value-addad tax. It also lagses the land on which the other 10 bottling plants are located from
the affiliate, Nadaco Realty Corporation {(*Nadeco Realty”), 40% of which is owned by the’ Corporation.
Leases with Nadeco Realty will expire on Januafy 31, 2022, but are renawable for another 25 years
under the same terms and conditions, except fof the monthly rental which will be based on the axisting
‘market rate at the time of the renewal. In addition to the pottling plants, it leases the land on which the
sales offices are located. Refer fo Note 29 to the Audited Financial Statements for further information on

the leases.

Otner than the builldings, teasehold improvemehts', machinary and aquipment, fixiures and appurténances
disclosed in Note 10 to the Audited Financial Statemants, ‘and the shares of stock in Nadeco Realty-
disclosed in Note & to the Audited Financial Statements, the Coarporation does not hold significant
‘prqperties. o ' ' o _ ‘

The Carporation does not intend to acquire any material real estate property m the next 12 months.

Refer to‘thes 7 (inventories), 10 (Property, plant and Equipment), 11 (Notes Payables), and 13 (Long-
term Debt) to the Audited Financial Statements for detatls on mortgage, li=n of encumbrances over the
properties of the Corporation and iis associate.

(TEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in lsigation in the ordinary COUrse of our business. The majority of the
casas inwhich we are a party are cases we bring to recover debts in relation to unpaid raceivabtes by our
trade partners or in relation to cash or route shartages, private eriminal prosecutions that we bring
(generally for low value offenses such as theft of product of distribution equipment, fraud, angd bouncing
checks), labor cases for alteged illegal dismigsal (which are usually accompanied by demands for
reinstatement in our company without loss of seniority rights, payment of geparation pay, and payment of -
backwages, moral and exemplary damages, and atloraey's fees), a small number of civil cases brought
against us based on divarse causes of action, and consumer cases brought against us involving

allegations of defective products.

As a result of a promotion in 1802, civil cases were filed against us in which thousands of individuais
claimad to hold numbered bottle crowns that entitied them to @ cash prize, The Phitippine Supreme Court
has congistently held in at least 7 final and axecutory decisions in the |ast 5 years thal we are not liable to
pay the amounts claimed. In the most racent of these decisions, the Supreme Court dismissed a similar
claim, reiterating that it is bound by its pronouncement in @ number of cases invalving this promotion. By
virtue of the precedential effect of the decided cases, we axpect the remnaining cases to be dismissed in
due course. Of the remaining cases, 13 cases involving at least 88 claimants are still with the Regional -
Trial Courts, 10 cases involving 485 claimants which have been dismissed by the Regional Trial Couris
ara pending transmittal to the Court of Appesals, 11 cases involving at least 25 claimants are pending with

tha Court of Appeals and 2 cases areé pending with the Supreme Court.

We do not believe that the liigationt in which we are currently‘ involved or which is presently pending or
threatanad against us is material to us, sither individually or in the aggregate. We have not, in the past
three (3) years, been involved in any bankruptcy, receivership of other simitar proceedings.

10




ITEM 4. SUBMISSIDN OF MATTERS TO AVOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
There was na matter submitted during the 4™ guarter of the ﬁscal year‘covere‘d by this raport to 8 vc:fe of
~security holders, through solicitation of proxies or atherwise. o

PART ll - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION |
ITEM 5. MARKET FQR ISSUER'S GD'MMGN EQUITY AND RELATED STDCKH.QLQER MATTERS '
Market (aformation o | |

. The common shares were listed with the Philipping Stock Exchange ("PSE") on February 1, 2008. The
high and low sales prices of such shares for the 1% and 2™ guarters of 2008 are set out balow.

2008 High - Low _]
17 Quarter Lk 23.10 R248
[ 2™ Quarter | @325 _| . B280

The share price as of the close of business on June 30, 2008 was R-2.53 and as of September 30, 20086
was B2.00. C o :

' Stockhotders ‘ I . :

The Corporation has approximately 538 haolders aof each class of common equity security (with the PCD
Nominee Corporation (Filipino) and (Non-Fillpino) considerad as two holders) as of June 30, 2008 (based
on number of accounts registered with the Stock Transfer Agent). The following are the top 20 holders of -
the common equity securities, based on“the' report furnished by the Stock Transfer Agent as of June 30,

2008

Number of Percentage of

No. '  Name ' - Shares Ownarship
1 | Quaker Global investments B.V, 1,089,101,362 29.4848%
"5 T PCD Nominee Gorparation (Non-Filipino) 993 701,223 26.89021%
3 | Mong Way Holdings, Inc. 857,788,628 23.2226%
2 | PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) 322,694,500 B.7362%
5 | Guoco Assets (Philippines) Inc. ‘ 255,594,964 £.9196%
6 | Orion Land Ine. - ‘ ‘ ‘ 149,841 502 4,.0566%
7 | Micky Yong - 20,000,001 0.5415%
8 | FelixS.Yu ‘ ' ‘ 140,098 | - - 0.0041%
9 | Winefreda Q. Madarang ' 250,000 0.0068%
10 | Valeriano A, Lugti 220,000 0.0080%
11 | Luis G. Dabao ‘ 200,00C 0.0054%
| 12 | Juanito R. [gnacio | ' 100,000 0.0027% |
13 | Ma. Celeste S. Narciso ‘ . 100,000 | 0.0027% |
14 | Ma. Corazon V. Pineda 100,000 0.0027% ;
15 | Jose |. Umali ‘ 100,000 0.0027%
16 | Yzrael Edwin de Vera Pineda . . 89000 £.0024%
17 | Rosauro P. Dino ' ' 70,000 | (.0018%
18 | Danial D. Gregorio, Jr. ‘ 70,000 . 0.0019%
18 | Roberto E, Tongoua ‘ 70,000 ©0.0019%
20 | Cacilia R. Duguran . ‘ §0.000 - 0.0016%
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Gash Dividends | . , o . :
The Carporation declared the following cash dividends in fiscal year 2007.

‘ . Payable to.
‘ S Dividend Per * Stockholders of :
_Date of Declaration ‘Sharé " Record as of ___Date of Payment
June 21, 2007 RB0,12 June 21, 2007 August 20, 2007

Thera was no dividehd dectératicn in fiscal year 2008. On Sepfember '30,‘2008, the Board of Directors
- approved the declaration of dividend amounting to B369,377.227.90. L - :

. 'Dividend Policy | . . , o L
The Corporation declares dividends to siockholders of recard, which are paid from the unrestricted

retained earning. Any future dividends it pays wilt be at the discretion of the Board after taking o
account our earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital and operating progréss, and other factors as
the Board may consider relevant, The present policy is to pay up to 50% of annual net income i’
dividends. ' ' - : '

Cash dividends are subject 1 approval by the Board without need for stockhoiders' approval. Stock
dividends require the further approval of the stockholders reprasanting no less than 2/3 of our outstanding .

. capital stock,
Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities including Recent Issuance of Securities

Constituting an Exempt Transaction . -
There has been no recent sale of unregisterad or exempt securities including recent issuance of

socurities constituting an exempt transaction.

PART Hll - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(TEM 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS!S OR PLAN OF OPERATION

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - fiscal 2008 versus 2007

ATIOUNT (in ousangs] || % 1O NET SALES
Fy 2008 | EY 2007 [ Ex=zo6d [ FY 2007 | BIW)
NET SALES 12080888 . 12918212  100.0% . 100.0% -
COST OF GOODS SOLD BAB4,371 . B780,036 68.3%  67.8%  -0.5%
GCROSS5 PROFIT ' . 4,116,515 4,156,176 N.7% 32.2% -0.5%
OPERATING EXPENSES: . ,
SELLING & DISTRIBUTION 1,784,405 - 1,570:882 13.7% 12.2% -1.8%
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE 703,718 §22,696 5.4% 48%  -08%
MARKETING EXPENSES 664,935 468.291 51% - 36%  -15%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,153,058 2,661,069 243% - 208%  -37%
(NGOME FROM OBERATIONS ‘ 963,457 ‘ .1'!495.107 | 74%  11.6% 4 2%
NET OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE) 37,463 24,520 03%  02% 0.1%
INCOME BEFORE TAX ‘ T jgo0gte  1518e27 . TT% . $1B% A%
INCOME TAX EXPENSE . 240,222 518,241 1.9% 4.0% 2.2%
NET INCOME ' | 760,697 1,001,386 - 5.9% 7.8%  -1.9%
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For fiscal year 2008, the Corporation achieved an EBITDA margin of 15%, EBIT margin of 8% and Net

\ncome margin. of 6%. The corresponding numbers for fiscal year 2007 are 18%, 12% and 8%

respectively. This decline in margins can be attributabie to adverse weather condition in thap«\e'aksélling |

" manths, as well as increase in the competition in.the market place.

‘Reve‘nues‘war'e,dri‘\kén by ravenuéigro\n&h ih NCB by 20% in keeping‘with'thé increasing cansumer "

preference for. beverages associated with heatth and weliness. As a response {0 increasing ‘health

awareness in the Philippines, the' Corporation expandad and will continue to expand its rangs of NCB

products. During the year, it entered the energy category by launching of trand Sting in poth sltm can

" and returnable glass packs. It aiso entered the vitamin water sagment by launching Propel in two flavors.

" Notwithstanding a crowded and declining carbonatad soft drinks market in the Philippines, it maintained
an almost flat volume growth in the carbonated soft drinks revenues. ‘ ‘

The pursuit to grow and expand the consumer goods market by targefing the pbroad CD mass market

which constitute the majoring of the Philippine papulation made the industry shift to expanding its offering
. of praducts at affordable prices and convenient packaging. The intensified competition from a crowded
CSD market along with a fragmented and relatively young NCE market as wall as the skyrocketing double
digit inflation which significantly affected constimer buying power and spending during the usual peak
months of March to June put a lot of pressure on the Corporation and the beverage industry as a whole to

lower its retail prices. In line with its strategy to make non-carbonated beverage available at affordabile
packaging, the average NCB price went down by 5% on account of a shift in mix, while the CSD price

remained largely unchanged. : o

in spite of & 'very challenging year, i.e. spiraling fuel cost, adverse weather conditions, stiff co‘r‘npetition'all‘

gausing undue pressure On revenues and costs, cost of goods sold increased mainty in ling with volume
growth white gross profit margin remained largely unchanged. Operating expenses as a ratio to net sales
increased from 20.6% to 24.3% principally due to additional one time marketing investmeant incurred in
the 2™ quarter of fiseal year 2008, depreciation and amortization of additional invastment in capital
expenditure and distribution infrastructure in line with the strategy of growing NCB and maintaining C5D
market share amidst 2 highly competitive industry. This led to a lower earning after tax margin (from
7.8% to 5.9% of net sales). ' C

Guided by a corporate strategy to grow NGB portfolio and a reflection of the great opportunities it makes
out fror this market, it continued to invest in expanding approaching capacity constraing in production

facilities. At the same time, as part of the strategy fo inCcrease the reach of the distribution netwaork, it. '

invested in distribution infrastructure such as RGBs, plastic cases, and in-stora refrigeration equipment.
Philippine financial reporting standards requires the depreciation and amortization of capital expenditure
investments in production capacity, RGBs, and powered coolers investment over their estimated useful
fives for purposes of presenting these expenditures in the profit and loss. In keaping with this strategy, it

also invested in additional sales and distribution staff and other associated costs such as pallet expenses

for the bottles and plastic shells, vehicles, freight for transparting powered coolers, among other things.
Consequentially, cost of goods sold increased from &7.8% to 58.3% as a percentage of net sales, while

seling and distribution expenses increased from 12.2% to 13.7% of net sales,. Depreciation and .

amortization of capital expenditure accounted for the increase in cost of good sold by 0.5% of net zaies
percentage as well as the increasa in salling and distribution expense also by 0.9% of net sales. General
and administrative expenses as a percentage over net sales increased from 4.8% fo 5.4% of net salés
mainly because of the additional lease expense and pensian expenses taken up in accordance with the
Phitippine financial reporting standards as well as regular salary rate increase in fiscal year 2008. As

mentionad elsewhere in this report, marketing expense as % Net Sales was up from 3.6% to 5.1% of net

sales on account of the ane time increase in expenditures incurred in Q2 fiscal year 2008.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - fiscal 2007 versus 2006

Net income for fiscal year 2007 was 81,001 milion, an increase of 133 million, ar 15.3% from fiscal year
2006. Net sales rose by B1,923 million or 17.5%, but thic increase was partially offset by a 81,507 million
or 20.8% increasa in cost of goads sold and a R266 millien or 11 .1% increase in operating expenses.

Net sales increased from 210,996 miltion in fiscal year 2006 to P12,916 millian in fiscal year 2007, an
increase of B1,923 million or 17.5%. Increases in revenues were driven by the growth in.CS0D as well as
the continuing geographical expansion of distribution and overall category growth in NCB. both the NCB
and C on account of 10.7% volume incraase and 6.2% price increase. AR

Cost of goods sold increased fram #7253 miflion in fiscal year 2008 to R8,760 million in fiscal year 2007,
an increase of 20.8%. The increase in cost of goods sold were partly in line with volume growth and
partly due to higher raw material costs such as sugar and concantrate costs and packaging cosis as well
as product mix shift towards non-carbonated beverages. : : o

Selling and distribufion expenses increased from B1,435 million in fiscal year 2006 to #1,594 miilion in
fiscal year 2007, an increase of 11.1%. The increase in selling and distribution expenses were mainly
 due to highar cost of fuel, increase in the number of warshouses and number of powered- coolers

provided to retailers in line with the volume growth in CsD and NCB and geographicat growth particularly
in NCB. ' ‘ . ‘ - ‘ :

Marketing ekpenses increased from R424 million in fiscal year 2006 to R468 miliion in fiscal year 2007, an |
inerease of 10.4%. This increase reflected the additional investment to support newly-introduced norn-
carbonated beverage prodicts, as well as increased volumes of carbonated beverages. '

General and administrative expenses increased from B536 million in fiscal year 2008 to BA58 million in
fiscal year 2007, an increase of 11.6%. The increase was primarily due to a 13.7% increase in salaries,
wages and employee benafits, reflecting increased headcount, scheduled salary increases and increased
performance bonuses, and a B16 million increase in rental and utilities and outside services in fiscal year

2007.

The foregoing factors resulied m an increase in income from operations of B150 million or 11.2%.
Effective tax rate was 34.1% in fiscal year 2007 compared fo 32.6%.in fiscal year 2006. This resulted in
incraase in net income of P133 million or 15.3%. Net income margin for fiscal year 2007 was 7.8%,
cormnpared ta 7.9% in fiscal year 2006. ' | ‘

FINANGIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY 3 . - - S
The Corporation's operations are cash intensive. This capability to generate ¢ash is one of its greatest
strengths. With its liquidity, the Corporation has substantial financial flexibility i varying oparating policy
in response to market demands, in meeting capital expenditures through internally generated funds and
in providing the Corporaftion with a strong finaricial condition that give it ready access to financing
alternatives (refer to Note 4 to the Audited Financial Statements for a detailed discussion on the
Corporation's revolving eredit facilities as of June 30, 2008}, ‘

Credit sales have increased over the past five years from 42% of total sales in 2006 {o 48% in 2007 and
62% in 2008. This reflects a shift from a direct distribution mode to a more efficient modsl of fostering
partnership with distributors and multi-route Entreprenaurial Distribution System ‘contractors as well as
incroase in Modern Trade business. Liquidity has remained healthy, in fact collection period improved
from 34 days in 2006 to 32 days in 2007 and 30 days in 2008. : , ‘ o

" Inventory days have increased from 9 days in 2006 to 11 days in 2007 and 12 days in 2008 in order to
support introduction of new products and voluma growth. Trade payable days have remained at
manageable levels ranging from 49 days to 56 days over the past five years. Operating cycls (aka.
‘average raceivable collection period plus average inventory conversion pariod) has remained shorter than
tha credit tarms given by the suppliers. -
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Incraase in currénl: assats from 22,258 million as of June 2006 to 82,547 miliibn'as of June 2007 were
due to increase in receivaples, .inventories and due from rafated parties. - Increases in receivables and
inventories were in line with increase in volurne. : o o ' '

Dacrease in current liabilites from R3,216 miliion as of June 2006 to R2,289 million as of June 2007
mainly due to the payment of long-tarm dabt, dividends and lower income tax payabiz in 2007, '
Total assets increased from 25 785 million as of June 2006 to R8,045 mition as of Jung 2007 mainly dué
to tha investments in bottles and cases and property, ‘plant and equipment in support of expansion
program and volume growth. Total liabilities decreased from R3,462 million as of June 20086 fo B2 765

million as of June 2007 mainly dué to payment of lang-term debt and dividends. Total equity increased

fram £3.323 million to ‘85,279 million mainly due to the R1.2 billion proceeds from the Initial Public
Offering ({PO) in January 2008. . ' ' oo g : o :

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES o o S
Historically, the Corporaiion has sourced funding for the capital expenditures essential to product
innovation initiakives and maintaining operational capabilities through internally-generated funds and long-
term borrowings. in recent years, it has met these requirements substantially out of operating cash flow,
and has incurred only shart-term debt to assist with temporary liquidity requirements. In January 2008, it
had embarked on an 1PO, with net proceeds of approximately 81.2 biltion, to fund the expansion of NCB
business. The Corporation has recently completed the expansion projects of Cebu and San Fermando
plants and expects to complete to other expansion projects by year 2009. Capital expenditure for fiscal
year 2008 amounted o B2 billion, 8386 million higher than previous. year's level. In addition to
maintaining a levet of ongoing capital expenditures broadly consistent with that incurred in recent pariods,
it expects to use the net proceads recaived from the PO offering to complete the remaining expansion

projacts lined up.

FACTORS THAT MAY IMPACT COMPANY'S OPERATIONS / SEASONALITY ASPECTS
Refer to Item 1 (2) {0) on discussion of Major Fisks. . ,

SIGINFICANT ELEMENTS OF INCOME OR LOSS THAT DID NOT ARISE FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS . ‘
Refer to Note 22 to the Audited Financial Statements for details of net finance and other income

(expenses).

[TEM 7. FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Ploase see Exhibit | hereof for the Audited Financial Statements as of June 30, 2008,

(TEM B. ‘INFGRMATION, ON INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT

The Corporation has engaged the services of an independent Certifiad Public Accountant {CPA) to
conduct an audit and provide objective assurance on the reasonableness of the financial statements and -
relevant disclosures. The independent CPA s responsible solely to the Board of Directors. ' ,

The appointment of the independent CPA ia submiited to the Audit Committes, the Board of Directors and
sharehotdars for approval, The representatives of the independent CPA are expected to be present -
during the Annual Stockholdars' Meating and' have the opportunity to make a statement on the
Corporation’s financial statements and results of operations, when they opt to do so, Thay are also
availanle to reply to queries during the said meeting. Upon request, the indepandant CPA can also be
asked to attend meetings of he Audit Committee and the Board, to make presentations and reply fo
inquiries on matters relating (o the Corporation's financial staternents. S ' ‘
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The Corporation has appointed Manabat Sanagustin & Co. as its independer{t CPA for the fiscal year
2008, Aside from audit services, it has also engaged Manabat Sanagustin & Co. 0 parform {ax
assurance services and rendar opinion on projects relating to the interpratation of tax laws, ragiiations
and rulings. - C L . ‘ ‘ ‘

" Aggregate faes bilied by tha indeperident CPA for profassional services in relation to: (i) the audit of the
annual financia! statements and sarvices in connection with (a) statutory and regulatory filings, and (b} the
initial pubtic offering of the Corporation’s share; and (i) tax aecounting, compliance, advice, planning and
any other form of tax services ars summarized as follows: . A ‘

FY2008 . FY 2007

Statutory audit fees B 2.70 miliion © R®3.00 milion:
|PO-related audit fees .~ 15.40 mitfion .
Tax feas . 0.25 mithon ‘ -
Total ‘ R 19,35 milkon B 3.00 million

(TEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AGCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE =~ | g |

Thera has been no change in the independent auditing fim or handling partner or disagreements with the
indapendent CPA on matters relating o the application and interpretations of accounting principles or
practices, tax laws and reguiatio'ns‘ financial statement disclosures of audit scope and procedures during
the two (2) most recent fiscal years. ' ‘ S

| PART il - CONTROL AND GOMPENSATION INFORMATION
{TEM 10.. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE ISSUER |

Term of office :

Directors alected during the annual meeting of the stockholders will hold office for one year until- their
successors are duly elected and qualified, except in case of death, resignation, disqualification or removal
from office. Directors who were alected to fill any vacancy hold office only for the unexpired term of their

pradecessors.

Directors . |
The following are the names, ages, citizenship, and year position was assumed, of our incumbent

diractors, including independent directors:

Year Position

Name . , ~ Age Citizenship was Assumed ‘
Micky Yong ‘ &1 Singaporean 1897 ‘
Varun Berry ] 47 indian : 2001
| James Eng, Jr. _66 American 2005 |
Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang) 58 . British - 2005
Rahui Bhatpagar . 50 Indian 2004
Timothy E. Minges_. 50 American o 2007
| Qaszim Khan : 51 Pakistani . 2008
| Jose M. Periquet, Jr. ‘ 62 . Filiping 2007
Rafael M, Alunan UI* 80 Fitipino 2007
Oscar 5. Reyes” ‘ 62 Filipino 2007
*adependant Dirsctor i . .
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Executive Officars
The following are the names, 39es, positions, citizenship and year position was assumed, of our

incumbent executive officers:

| Name = | Age | Citizenship | Position l:iﬁ'ﬂﬂ,iﬁ
T | o1 | Seomorn | Gl buscume Ofcar 202
Partha Chakrabart aa | tndian ‘Se“,ic" "F‘f:arfg?j“gfgggfd Chief [ . 2098
o [ | oo | ool | T
s G 7| 50 | rio | it |
Ma. Rosario C.Z. Nava 39 | Filipine Corporate Sacfefaw ‘30‘07

Background Information and Business Experience
Diractors:

MICKY YONG o o ‘ ‘
Mr. Yong has held the office of Chiaf Executive Officer of PCPP! since 2002, but he has been a directar

since the Guoco Group Limited and its subsidiarigs ("Guoco Group") acquired its intarast in PCPPI in
1997. Since 1989, Mr. Yong has served as Prasident of Guoco Assels {Phifippines), Inc., the Guoco
Group's principal investment vehicle in the Philippines. Mr. Yong was the country manager and director
of Dao Heng Bank Philippines and a director of First Lepanto Taisho Insurance, Tutuban Properties Inc.,
Guoco Securities Philippines and several other corporations under the Guoce Group. Mr. Yong holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the University of Singapors.

VARUN BERRY ' S
Me. Berry is PepsiCo, inc. ("PepsiCa’)'s country manager for the Philippines, a post he has heid since
2001. He joined PepsiCo in india in 1993 and has held a variety of marketing and operating roles within
the organization. Prior 0 joining PepsiCo, he was a marketing manager for Unilever. He holds an MBA
and a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering from the Panjab University - Chandigarh.

JamES ENG, JR. ‘ :
Mr. Eng has been an Executive Director of the Guaco Group Limited since 2001. RHe is responsible for
group staff support tunctions for the Guoco Group. Before he joined the Guoco Group in 1394, Mr. Eng
praviously worked with Hiram Walker, a division of Allied-Lyons. Postings included New York, Miaemi,
London, Hong Kang and Windsor Canada. During his time with Brout, lssacs & Co., Certified Public
© Accountants, in New York City, he was responsible for the Management Services Division and was a
. Management Consultant in New York for Computer Methods Corporation. He holds a Bachelor of

Business Administration degree from the University of Notth Carolina. ‘ o -

TSANG CHO TAl (ALLAN TSANG) - B - .

Mr. Tsang is the Chief Financial Officer of the Guaco Group Limited. He is a fetiow member of the Hong '

. Kong institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, as
well as an assoclate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Tsang

was an asseciate of an international firm of accountants before joining ihe Guoco Group in 1983 '
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RAHUL BHATNAGAR . ‘ . ‘ : L . :
Mr. Bhatnagar is the Vice-Pregidant and Chief Einancial Officer, Asia Region, for PepsiCo, whare he
" leads the finance function for both beverages and food throughout the Asian region, and he has served
as such since 2003, Mr. Bhatnagar joined PepsiCo in 1996 as Chief Financial Officer of the India
beverage business. ' Prior to joining PapsiCo, he spent two yaars as Chief Financial Officer of Seagram
India, and before that, he spent seven yaars with Nestie india in the finance division in various’ laadarship
oles, the last of which was as the Financial Controlier of the business. He startad his career as a
management consuitant in India and the United States. He holds an MBA degree from Wharton School,
an honors Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from St Stephen's College, Dethi University and is &
mamber of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in tndia. C : : 2

TimoTHY E. MiNGES -+~ o o

Mr. Minges is the President of Asia Pacific Markets for PepsiCo. He has been with PepsiCo fur 25 years
including 15 years in Asia with a variety assignment in China, Thailland, Indonesia and India. He holds a
8.5, in Accounting from Miami University in Oxford, Ohio. ‘ -

Qasing KHAN L , ‘ o ‘
Mr. Khan has been connected with PepsiCo for the last 21 years and has occupied vanous exgcutive and

" managerial oles in different regional offices of PepsiCo. He is currently PepsiCo's Asia Franchise
Businase Unit General Manager. Prior to joining PapsiCo, he worked for Procter & Gamble. He helds an
MEA and Marketing degrees (with nonors) from Michigan State University. SR ‘

JOSE N. PERIQUET, JR. ' ‘ : S

Mr. Periguet is the President and the Chief Executive Officer of the Metropolitan insurance Company,
inc., a position he has held since 1989 up to the prasent. He has heen employed by Matropolitan
. Insurance since 1985, when he joined as Acting Prasident and Manager. He joined AlG in New York In
1067 and was later assigned to AlU (Philippines), Inc. where he held the position of Senior Vica-President
and Diractor. Mr. Periquet is alsc a director of MIC Holdings, Inc., Bradstack [nsurance Brokers Inc. and
the- Athenaeurm Candominium Corporation. - Mr. Periquet holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from

© Ateneo de Manila University and a Master's degree in Economics from Fordham University.

RAFAEL M. ALUNAN I . - : ‘
Mr. Alunan is the Prasident of the First Philippine Infrastructure Devalopment Corporation @ position he

has held since 1999 up to the present, and sits on the board of several of its operating subsidiaries. He s
a director of Sun Life of Canada (Philippines) Inc., Sun Life Financial Plans, Inc. Sun Life Balanced Fund,
inc. and the Management Association of the Philippines. Mr. Ajynan is the President of Kilosbayan, a
non-profit, non-partisan, ethics-oriented people’s organization and a columnist for BusinessWorld. He
served in the cabinets of President Fidel V. Ramos and President Corazon C. Aquino as Secretary of the
Interior and Local Government and Secretary of Tourism, respectively. He holds a double degres in
Business Administration and History-Political Science srom De La Salle University and a Master's degree
in Public Administration from Harvard University. T

0OscAR 5. REYES - : , C
Mr. Reyes is the Chairman of Link Edge. Inc. Ha has been a director of the Philippine Long Distance
Telephone Company since 2002, Bank of the Philippine islands sinca 2003, Sun Life of Ganada Philz. Ine
gince 2004, Manila Watar Company since 2005, SMART Communications, Inc since 2008, among other .
companies. He previously served the Shelt Group of Companies in tne Philippine in varfous capacities,
inciuding Country Chairman and President of Pilipinas Shell Pefroleum Corporation, Managing Diractor of
Shell Philippines Exploration B.V., Vice-President for Finance, Lagal and Corporate Affairs and Vice-
President for Human Resqurces of Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation, Area Finance Adviser for South
America and Regional Planning Adviser for Western Hemisphers & Africa Region for the Shell
infernational Petroleurn Co. of London and General Manager for Treasury and Planning of Pllipinas Sheil.
Mr. Reyes also served as Executive Vice-President and General Manager of the Phifipping Petroleum
Corporation, Consultant for National Steel Corporation and its affiliated companies and Project Team
Leadar and Head of Special Studies of the Private Development Gorporation of the Philippines. Mr.
Reyas holds a Bachelor of Arts dagree in Economics {cum laude) from Ateneo de Manila University. His

18




post-graduate studies include: Business Management Consultants and Trainers Program of the Japan
Productivity Center/Asian Productivity Organization in Japan and Hong Kong; International Management
Development Program leading !o a Diploma in Business Administration’ and GCertificate in Export
Promation in Waterioo' Univarsity, Ontario, Canada, Furopean Businass . Program from the United
Kingdom, The Natherlands, France, Germany and Switzertand; Mastsr in Businass Administration studies
at the Ateneo Graduate Sehool of Busingss Administration;. Program for Management Devalopment from
Harvard Business School; and Commercial Management Study Program at the Lensbury Centra of the
Shall International Petroleum Company in the United Kingdom. S ,

Exocutiva Officers:

PARTHA CHAKRABART ‘ ‘
Mr. Chakrabarti has been employad by PepsiCo since 1994 and he remains a PepsiCo emplaoyee while
holding his current position in RCPPI under a formal secondment agreernent. Mr. Chakrabarti bagan his
 career with PepsiCo India, where he held a number of positions hafore moving fo Vietnam as Chief
Financial Officer of PepsiCo's businass there, Before joining PepsiCo, he worked for ICt india. He holds
a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce from the University of Calcutta and gualified as a Ghartered

~ Accountant in india.

CFELIX S. YU

Mr. Yu joined the predecessor of PCPP! in 1983 and has seived in various roles in sales and plant.
management. Prior to joining PCPPI, he worked for the CEG-URC Group of Companies and bafore that,
Mestle Philippines. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Businass Administration from De La Salle

University.

 ROBERTO H. GOGE T A . -
Mr. Goce's background is in sales and logistics. Prior to joining PCPH in 1997, he worked for San Migue
Corporation and before that, he held various positions in grains and fartilizer industries, His experience
" encompasses business planning, management and organization audits, and training and development. -
Ha holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Management from Ateneo de Maniia University and
is a founding member of the Distribution Management Associatian of the Philippines.

DaneL D. GREGORID, JR. ‘

Mr. Gregorio began his career as a systers analyst for Coca-Cola Bottling Philippines, inc. and roseé to
the position of Chief Accountant. in 1887, he maoved to indonasia as Country General Manager for Coca-
~ola Amatil, the owner of the local Coca-Cola hotler. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
tndustrial Engineering. ' -

MA. Rosario C.Z. Mava ‘ : ‘ '

Ms. Nava is a practicing lawyer and & member of the integrated Bar of the Philippinas since 1995. She
has been a director and the Corporate Secretary of Solectron Philippines, inG. since 2005 and has been
the Corporate Secretary of CPAC Monier Philippines, Inc. since 2004, She was aiso a Diractor of
" Hewlett-Packard Philippines Corp. from 2001 to 2002, and re-elecied in 2004 up to 2007, and was its
Corporate Secretary from 2005 to 2007. She holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Legal Management
‘with hanors from Ateneo de Manila Univarsity and a Juris Doctor degrea fram the Ateneo de Manila
- Unlvarsity School of Law. L . ‘

Resignation of Directors ‘ ‘ ‘ , ‘

No Director has resigned or declined fo stand for ra-alaction to the Board of Directors since the date of
the last Annual Stockhdlders’ Meeting due to any disagreement on any matter relating to our operations,
policies or practices. - ‘ . ' ‘

Significant Employees and Family Relationships . :
No single person is expected fo make a significant contribution to the business since we consider the
collective efforts of all our employees as instrumental to the overall success of our business. We are not
aware of any family relationship between or among the aforementioned Directors or Executive Officers up
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to the fourth civil degree. We have not had any .t.'ransacticn d

Director or Executive Officer had a direct o indirect interest.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

- None of the aforementionad Directors

r_rEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation of Diractors and Executive Officers

" The agaregate compensation paid in the fiscal years 2

or Executive
pankruptoy proceeding, of is of has been subject to any judg
otherwise limiting his involvement
securities laws during the past

uring the fast two (2) years in which any

Officars s or has.been involved in any criminal o

in any type of business, Of
5 years and up to the latest date.

ment of a competent court barring or
has been found to have viclated any

008, 2007 and 2006 to our Executive Officers is sat

" out below:
Name Position Year | Salary Bonus Others
I Micky Yong Chairman, President & Lo '
Chief Executive Officar
Falix 5. Yu . Executive Vice-
President,
Mational Sales
' ‘ Operations
| Partha Chakrabarti . ‘ B
' ‘ Sanior Vice-President &
. Chief Financial Officer - |
Daniel D. Gregerio, Jr. .
Senior Vice-President
for
Roberta H. Goce Manufacturing &
Logistics .
Aggregate for above- Senior Vice-Pragident,
named officers Corporate Services 2006 | 242,100,000 R18,800,000 -
‘ Group 2007 | 42,300,000 19,300,000 -
‘ 2008 43,706,000 22,066,000 -
All other directors and 2006 - - -
officers as & group - 2007 - - -
unnamed 2008 - - R 1,338,7656"

* This relates to per diem allowances paid to the directors.

Thera are no special employm

Pasos (B 1,500,000).

Norn-executive Directors are entitled to a per diem allowanc
- Corporation’s Board maeetings and commiftee meetings, excep
per diem allowance is U5%2,000.
Guaco Group have agreed o forago
racommendead, for approval by the stock
of the Board of Directors in the amount of

annual directors’ fee (excluding per diem a

- Seven of the Direclors w
such  paymenis.
holdars, the payment of
Five Hundred Thousan
lowances) will amount to

On September

ent contracts bétw:aen us! and the above Executive Ofﬁcérs;

e of US$1,000 for each attendance in the
t for Audit Committee meetings where the
ho are associated with PepsiCo and the
30, 2008, the Board has
an annuai directors’ fee to each member
d Pasos (B 500,000). |f approved, total
One Mitlion Five Hundred Thousand

“There are no outstanding warrants or options held by the above Executive Officers and alt such officers
and Directors as a group. :
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(TEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Security Ownership of Redord and Benefigial Owners of at Least

5% of Our Securities as of 30

June 2008
Name of
' . : , s Benaficial ‘
Title of Nama and Addreas of Recard Owaer and |* Ownarand I . Number of Shares '
Class - " Ralationship with issuar ralationship cit"m"st"p' Hold Percentage
‘ ‘ with racacd
L : gwner
Tiuaker Global investments B.V.' Sama as .
. Gommon | Zonnebaan 35, 3542 Eb Litrecht The fadicated in Outch 1,089,101,362 19.48%
shareg Nathedands o colurn 2 ‘ - . . .
) Relatlonship = stockholder ‘
ng Nominea Corparation (Non-Fiiping)” i
Common | 37" Floor, The Enterprise Centat ' -} Plaaga rafer to - e
hares | Ayala Avenus, Makati City footnote Non-Fifigino 993,701.223 26.90%
| . Relationship — please refer to footrote
Hong Way Holdings, lnc.” 8 . .
Common | 20" Floor, LKG Tower : _Same a3 . , S
eharas | BBO1 Ayala Avanue, Makati City ‘“j;f;‘::é"  Singaporean 857,788,828 23.22%
Ralationship — stockholder ‘
PGP Norminea Corporation (Filpina)” ‘
Gammen | 37 Floor: The Enterprise Centar Pleasze rafer to - - )
shares Ayaia Avenue, Makati Gity : foutnote Fiilpmo 322694500 8.74% ‘
Reatationship — ploase refar to footnate ‘ - ]
Guoco Asaets (Philippines) inc® ‘
! Same as R
Comemon | 20" Floor, LKG Tower . " . .
shares 6801 Ayala Avenue, Malkati City mgffmtﬂ:én Singaporaan 255';554'964 6.92% .
Ralationship - stockholder ‘

L
Note: Shares indicated above ‘aclude qualifying shares held by their directors.

! Quaker Global Investments BV (*QGI™ is a'carporation duly organize
the Metherlands with principal office at Zonnebaan 35, 3542 EB Utrech
Directors, usuafly designates Mr. Varun Berry to vote its shares of stock in the Corporation.

! peD Nominee Corporation is the rcgistéred owner of shares beneficially owned by
Depository, Inc. (PCD), 2 private company organized to implement an automated boeok entry system o

participants in th

4 and existing under and by virtue of the laws of
t, The Netherlands. QGI, through its Board of

e Philippine Central
f handling securities

tranisactions in the Philippines. While PCD Nominee Corporation is the registered owner of the shares in the Corporation’s
their non-Filipino clients,

baoks, the beneficial ownership of such shares pestains to PCD participant:
~ whether individuais or corporations, in whose naries these shares arg recor
procedures, when an issuer of a pCD-eligible 1ssue will hold a stockholders’ meeting,
in favor of the participants for the total nuraber of shares in theif respective principal
total number of shares in their client seoutitics account. For shares held in the pringi
is appointed as proxy with full voting rights and powers as registered owner of such shares. Fors
gecurities account, the participant is appointed a§ proxy with the obligation to constitute a sub-proxy i

s (brokers) and/or
ded in their respective books. Under PCD
PCT will execute & pro-forma proxy
securities account, as well as for the
pal securities account, the participant
hares held in the client
favor of its clients

" with full voting and other rights for the nurnber of shares beneficially owned by them.

* Hong Way Holdings, Inc. “HWHI") i3 a corporation duly orzanized an
Philippines with principal office at the 20™ Floor, LKG Tower, 6301 Aval

Board of Directors, usually designates Mr. Micky Yong to vote its shares of stock in the Corporation.

4 game as footnote 2 above except that the beneficial ownership of shares registe
Corporation pertains to PCD participants (brokers) and/or their Filipino clients, whether

whose names these shares are recorded in their respective books.

? Guoco A&sets {Philippines), Inc. (“GAFIM isa cqrporaxinn duly organizéd and existi
the Philippines with principal office at the 20" Ploor, LKG Tower, 6801 Ayala Aven

Board of Directors, usually designates Mr. Micky Yong to voie its shares of stock in the Corporation.

d existing under and by virtue of the laws of the
la Avenue, Makati City. HWEIL, through its

red in the name of PCD Nominec
individuals or corporations, in

ag under and by virtue of the laws of ‘
ue, Makati City. GAPY, through iis
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Security Ownership of Ménagément as of 30 June Zdﬂﬂ

I
Amount & Natura of

Title of ‘ . - . Perceat of
T Class ‘ Name and Address of Ownar ganeficial Ownership Citizenship Class
‘ Micky Yong : 20,000,001~ dicect R .
Common ‘Ch?srman of the Board, President and - . ‘ ownarship except for Singaporaan 0.5418%
shares Chief Exacutive Officer - : ane qualifying shara o i ‘
: cfo Krn, 29 National Road, Bafanuay Tunazan, Muntiniupa City o a .
Varun Berry ‘ : . ‘
Comman | Non-Executie Difactor | 1 - indian Nit -
: /o 217 Floor, LKG Tower, 6801 Ayaia Avenue, Malcatt City :
Jamas Eng, Jr. ‘ o ‘
Comman | Mon-Executive Director ' . :
chares | cfo 50" Floor, The Center, . 1 American N
99 Gusen's Road, Central, Hong Kang
Tsang Cho Tal {Alian Tsang). e
Common Mon-Executive Director . B .
t .
shares | cfo 50" Floor, The Center, o ! British Nl
: g4 Queen's Road, Central - Hong Kong ‘
Rabwl Bhatnagar i | .
Common | Non-Exacutive Diractor - p tndli ;
- “emates | ¢l 20" Floor Carcline Ceatar , . 1 Indian N
98 Yun Fing Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong ‘
Timothy £- Minges R ' ‘
Common | Nan-Executive Directar ‘ . o \
shares | clo 20" Floor Caroline Genter o L . American i
=& yun Ping Road, Causgway Bay, Hong Kong
: Ctasim Khan ‘ ‘ B ‘
Comman | Non-Executive Diractor T Pakistani -
naras | ofo 20" Floor Garoline Center o akistan! M
=8 vupn Ping Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kang
Jase M. Periquat, Jr. '
Common | Non-Executiva Diractor ‘ , ' Eilipino Nl
shares s/o 3° Floor, Athenaeum Buiiding, 160 Lf, Laviste Streat, ‘
Salcedo Vilage, Makati Gity
Rafael M. Atunan ili )
Common Indepandant Ditactor \ o - S :
chares afo 5" Floor, Banpres Building, Exchange Road cotnar Meralce ! Filipino . N
Avenue, Ortigas Genter, Pasig City ‘
Csear 5, Reyes '
Commen | Independent Directer ' 1* . Filipino il
sharss oo Unit 2504 Corporate Center, 139 Vatera Strael, Salcedo
Villags, Makati City
Partha Chakrabarti :
Cammon | Saniof Vige-President and | ;
ghares Chief Financial Officer : 0 Indian 0%
clo Km, 29 National Road, Barangay Tunasan, Muntiniupa City
GCommon | Loix S Y4 . : 149,998 - direct . o
eharas Executive Vice-President, National Sates Operations’ wnership Filipina 0.0095%
ofo Krn, 79 National Road, Barangay Tunasan, Muntniupa City '
Robarto H. Goce
C:;:gz" Sentor Vice-President, Corporate Services Group 0 Filipino 0%
efo K. 26 National Road, Barangay Tunasan, Muntiniupa City :
‘ Danist D. Gregorio, Jr. - o +0.000 - di ‘
C;:g:;g” Sanior Viee-Prasidant for Manufacturing and Logistics C‘I?Nﬂershggd Filipino 0.0019%
/o Km._ 29 National Road, Barangay Tunasan, Muntiniupa City - '
Ma. Rosaria G, Z- Mava .
Commgn | Gorporatd Secratary 10,000 - direct U s
chates | olo 7 fioor The Pearibank Gentr=, 148 Valaro Streat, Salcado ownarship Filipino 0.0003%
Village, Makati City

= Each of the diracters is the registerad ownerl

The aggregate shareholdings of directors and key officers as of 30 June 2008

of at least one qualitying ghare.

shares which is approximately 0.5531% of our outstanding capital stock.

amounted to 20,430,008
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" Changes in Control S : o ‘ S
We are not aware of any vating trust agreement or any other similar agreement which may rasulf in a
change in centrol. No change in control has occurred since the beginning of its ast fiscal year.

| ITEM 13. GERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS -

The Corporation has signlﬁcént related party wransactions which are summarized as follows:

a. The Gorporéﬁcm has Exclusive Bottling Agreements with'.PépsiCo, ‘which has 29.49% beneficial
intarest in PCPPI, up fo year 2017 and Papsi Lipton, & joint veniure of PepsiCo, up to year z012.
Under the agreements, the Corporation is autharized o bottle, sall and distribute PepsiCo and Lipton
peverage products in the Philippines. ‘ ' ' S . .

in addition, PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton shall supply tne Corporation with the main raw materals.
(concantrates) in the production of these beverage products and share in the funding of certain
marketing programs, Tha agreements may be. renewed by mutual agreement between the parties. .
. Under the agreements, PapsiCo and Pepsi Lipton have the right to terminate the contracts under
certain conditions, including failure to comply with terms and conditions of the appointment subject t0
wiitten notice @nd rectification periad, change of ownership contral of the Corporation, change of
awnership. centrol of an entity which controis PCPPY, discontinuance of bottling beverages for 30
consecutive days, occurrence of certain events leading to the Corporation’s ingoivency or bankruptcy,
change in management and contro! of the business, among other things. Total net purchases from.
PepsiCo amounted {o B1 billion and B2 bifion in fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively. Totai
purchases from Pepst Liptan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 amounted to R648 millior.

The Corporation has a cooperative advertising and marketing program with PaepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton
that sets forth the agreed adveriising and marketing activities and participation arrangement during
the years covered by the bottling agreements. in certain instances, it pays for the said expenses and
claim reimbursement from PepsiCe. As of June 30, 2008, reimbursable marketing charges from
PepsiCo amounted to RIS million. For the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, it incurred
marketing expenses amounting to 665 million, pAGS million and 24324 millicn, respactivaly.

p. On Aprt 11, 2007, the Gorporation entered into @ Performance Agreement with PepsiCo, Orion
Brands international (“Orion Brands®), Guoco Assets (Phillppines), fne. and Hong Way Holdings, lne.
to meet certain marketing and investment lavale from 2007 to 2017, as required Dy the Exclusive
Bottling Agresments with PepsiCo. The Performance Agreement requires the Corporation to: (1)
spend a specified percentage with a minimum amount for the beverage products; (2) make cerain
investrents based on a minimum percentage of saies to expand the manufacturing capacity; {3)
invest in & rinimum number of coolers per year to support distribution expansion; (4} expand the
distribution capabilities in terms of the number of active routas, the number of new routes and the
number of trucks used for distribution support, and (5) observe financial guidelines as set by the
Board, ' ‘ : o o

. CGertain real estate properties of Nadeco Realty were ‘mortgaged to secure the outstanding long-tarm
debt and a portion of its notes payable. - '

4 It leases certain parcels of land where same of its bottling plants are located from MNadeco Realty.
Lease expanses recognized amounted to 211 milfion in 2008 and B3 riflion in 2007. There were no
legse expenses recognized on these leasas before January 31, 5007 as a result of the elimination in
the consolidation. - o ‘

e. Working capital advances. s advances to Nadeco Realty amounting to 238 million bear intercst at a
fixed rate of 10% per annum, . :




PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Manual on Corporate Governance, which was adopted on June 21, 2007, details the standards by
which the Corporation conducts sound corporate governance that is coherent and consistent with relevant
laws and reguiatory rules, and constantly strive to create value for the stockholders. '

Compliance with the Manual's standafds is monitored by the Comptiance Officer. Uitimate responsibility
rests with the Board of Directors, which alse maintains three (3) standing committees apart from the
Exacutive Committee, each charged with ovarsight into specific areas of the business activities: ‘

Audit Committes ‘ : o ‘ o : o
The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board i its fiduciary responsibilities by praviding an
independent and objective assurance fo the management and sharaholders of the continuous
improvernent of the risk management systems, business operations and the proper safeguarding and use

of our resources and assets. The Audit Committes provides a general evaluation of and assistance in the
overall improvament of aur risk managernent, control and governance pracesses.

The Audit Committee must be c:ornpri'sed of at teast 3 Directors, pr‘eferiably with ac::bunting and financial
background. Twe {2) of the members must be Independent Directors, including the Chairman of the
Committea. The Audit Committee reporis to the Board and is required to meet at least once every three.
(3) months. S : . ‘ :

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Audit Commiftee are Messis. Oscar 3. Reyes (Chairman),
Rahul Bhatnagar, Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang), and Rafas! M. Ajunan i ‘

Compensation and Remuneration Committee o ‘ ‘
The Compensation and Ramuneration‘ Cammittee is respensible for objectively racommending a farmal
and transparent framework of remuneration and evaiuation for the members of the Board and its Kay
execulives. '

The Compensation and Remuneration Committee must be comprised of at least three (3) Directors,
including one independent director who reports directly to our Board. The Committe is required to meat
at least once per year. ‘ :

The inéumbent Chairman and members of the Compensation and Remuneration Committee are Messrs.
James Eng Jr. (Chairman), Micky Yong, Rahul Bhatnagar, and Rafae! M. Alunan . )

MNomination Committee : ' : '
The Nomination Committee is responsible for providing shareholders with an independent and objective
avaluation of and assurance that the mermbers of the Board are competent and will foster the long-term
success and secure competitiveness of the Corporation. ‘ ‘

The Nomination Committee must comprise at lagst thrae (3) Directors, including one (1) Independent |
Director. The Nomination Committee reparts directly to the Board-and is required to meet at least once a
_year. : : o ' ‘ : : : ‘

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Nomination Gommittee are Messrs. Mickyl‘Yong -
(Chairman), James Eng Jr., Rahul Bhatnagar, and Rafagl M. Alunan fll. : '

Exectitive Committee , : :

The Exacutive Commitige is responsible for gevaloping and monitoring the Company's risk managarment
policies. The Executive Commiltee reviews the detailed fnancial and operating performance of the
corporation every month and raview prograss against the relevant Annual Operating Plan and Operating

Targets, monitor the Caorporation’s progress against key initiatives, pricing strategies and plans, sales and
marketing plans, capital expenditure planning and key decisions on organization structure and paople.
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The incumbent Chairman and members of the Executive Committes are Messrs. Micky Yong (Ghairman),
© Varun Berry, James Eng Jr,, Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang), Qasim Khan, and Partha Chakrabarti (CFQ).

For purposes of avaluating compliance with our Manual on Corporate Govarnance, the Corporation has
adopted: the self-rating form prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission (5EC). The
Corporation ‘has complied with its Manual ‘on Corporate Govarnance through the election of two (2)
indepandant directors to the Corporalion’s Board: the constitution of the Audit, Comnpensation and
- Bamuneration, and Nomination Commitices pursuant to its Gy-laws and tha election af the Chairman and

members of such commitiees, which include the independent dirgctors; the conduct of reg'ular meetings

of the Board of Diractors and the various committeas of the Board above stated; adherence to the written™—"" "~

Code of Conduct prepared by the Corporation's Human Resources 'Department; and. adherence 1o
applicable accounting standards and disclosure requiraments. ' .

The Corporation adheres to a business plan, budget and marketing plan. Management preparas and - :
submits to the Executive Commitiee of the Board and to the Board, on a regular basis, financial and
aperationial reports which enable the Board and Management to assess the effectivenass and efficiency
of the Cdrporation. C . ' ‘ o

‘ o ‘ +
Wa have fulfilled our corporate governance abligations and there have been no deviations from the Qur
Manual as of date. ‘ o ' ‘ - :

We continue to evaluate and review our Manual on Corporate Goverhance to ensure that best practices
on corporate governance are being adopted. P -

~ 'SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 'of the Code and Section 141 of the Cerporation Code, this
report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, theraunta duly authorized, in the City of
Muntinlupa on2gOctober 2008 ‘ ‘ ‘

MICKY YONG - PARTHA GHAKRABART! |
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Senio,r Vr‘c; Prasident and Chiaf Financial Office
MA

HONEYLIN C. CASTOLO SARIO C.Z. NAV
AVP-Planning and Reporting . Comporate Secretary

By:
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
Km. 29, National Road

Tunasan, Muntinlupa City

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of Pepsi-Cols Products Philippines, Inc.
(the Company), which comprise the balance sheets as at June 30, 2008 and 2007 y and the
statements of income, statements of changes in cquity and statements of cash flows for the vears
then ended, and a summary of significant accowtting policies and other explanatory notes. We
have also audited the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2006, and a summary
of sigmficant accounting policies and other explanatory notes of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines,
Inc. and Subsidiary {collectively referred to as “the Group™),

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management ts responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or errot; selecting and applying approptiate accounting policies; and making accounting
egtimates that are reasonable in the circumstances,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to cxpress an opinion on these financial statetnents based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with Phulippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financia)
statements, whether due to fraud or error. Tn making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
stalements in oider to design audit procedures that are appropriate i the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evatuating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. o
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our andit opinion,

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly. in all material respectis, the financial
position of the Company as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
Also, in our opinion, the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2006, present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial performance of the Group for the year then ended in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

EMERALD ANNE C. BAGNES

Partner

CPA 1icense No, 0083761

SEC Accreditation No. 0312-A

Tax Identification No. 102082332

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-12-2007
Issued July 10, 2007; Valid until July 9, 2010

PTR MNo. 0988683 1
Issued January 7, 2008 at Makati City

September 30, 2008
Makati City, Metro Manila
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FPEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC,

Km. 28 Mationat Road, Tunasan, Muntinfupa Gity 1773 Philippines
Tel Moo (832) B50-7901 - Fax No.: (632) 850-7928

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
EOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC. is responsible for all
information and representations contained i the financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2008. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards and reflect arnounts that are based on the best estimates and informed Jjudzment
of management with #n appropriate consideration to materiality. '

in this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides for the
necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are
safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition and liabilities are recognized. The managemsnt
iikewise disclose to the Company’s audit-committee and to its external auditor: (i) all significant
deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls that could adversely affect its ability to
record, process and report financial data; (if) material weaknesses in the internal controls: and (iii)
any fraud that involves management or other employees who exercise significant roles in internal
controls. ’

The Board of Directors reviews the financiai statements before such statements are approved and
submitted o the stockholders of the compaty.

Manabat Sanagustin & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has examined
the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and
has expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such examination, in ils
repoyt to the Board of Directors and stockholders,

MICKY YDNG_,ﬁ-"""
Chainman President afld Chief Executive Officer

A (b s ol o

PARTHA CHAKRARBARTI i
Senior Vice President and Chief 1 navige Officer

Subscribed and Sworn to thisﬂtT B 7 2008 day of , in the City oMUNTIN LUPA dITY
taxpayers exhibiting their competent evidence of identity in the form of Passport Nos. 21751780 and
506034790 respectively. ;
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PEFSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in Thousands)

June 30
Note 2008 2007
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 P590,326 P632,272
Receivables - net 6 15 918,952 827,095
Inventories 711 678,933 600,899
Due from related parties 15 245,673 134,468
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 113,252 61,045
Total Current Assets 2,547,136 2,255779
Noncurrent Assets
Investments in associates 8 22 525,502 505,474
Bottles and cases - net 9, 11 1,972,654 1,687,581
Property, plant and equipment - net 8 1011 2,861,459 2,158,107
Deferred tax assets - net 14 - 40,444
Other assets - net 138,030 137,963
Total Noncurrent Assets 5,497 654 4,529 569
P3,044,790 P6,785,34%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Notes payable 7,8 10 11,13, 22 P147.100 P48,600
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 712,15, 26 2,079,994 2,201,248
Due to a related party 15 62,021 53,453
Income tax payable - 271,130
Current portion of long-term debt 13, 22 - 241,666
Dividends payable 28 . 400,000
Total Carrent Liabilities 2,289,115 3,216,097
Nencurrent Liabilities
Accrued retircment cost - net of current portion 26 186,577 203,909
Deferred tax liabilities - net 14 289,712 -
_Long-term debt - net of current portion 13,22 - 41,607
Total Nencurrent Liabilities 476,289 245 876
Total Liabilities 2,765,404 3,461,673
Equity -
Capital stock 27 554,066 496,948
Additional paid-in capital - 27 1,197,369 39473
Effect of dilution of ownership 8§ (1,018) (1,018)
Retained earnings 8, 28 3,528,969 2,768,272
Total Equity 5,279,386 3,323,675
F5,044,790 P6,785,348

See Notes (v the Financtal Swlements,



PEPSE-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended June 30

Company Company Group

2008 2007 2006
) Note  (SeeNote8)  (See Note §) {See Note 8)
NET SALES 16,24 - P12,980,886 P12,916,212  P10,992,812

COST OF GOODS 15,17, 20

SOLD 21, 26, 29 8.864 371 8,760,036 7,252,76_6_
GROSS PROFIT 4,116,515 4156176 3,740,046
OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling and 13, 18, 20,

distribution 21,26, 20 1,784 405 1,570,682 1,434,773
(General and 15,19 20,

administrative 21,26, 29 703,719 622,006 536,321
Marketing expenses 15 664,935 468,291 424,059

3,153,059 2,661,069 2,395,153
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 063,456 1,495,107 1,344,893
NET FINANCE AND OTHER &, /J, 13,

INCOME (EXPENSE) 13, 22 37.463 24 520 {35,272y
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,000,919 1,519,627 [,289.621
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14 240,222 51‘8,241‘ 420,874
NET INCOME P760,697 P1,001.386 PR6R, 745
Basic Earnings Per Share 23 P0.22 P0.30 PO.26

Jee Notes to the Financial Statements.



FEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENT 5 OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Amounts in Thousands)
Years Ended June 30
Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
Note _ (See Note 8B)  (See Note 8)  (SeeNote 8)
CAPITAL STOCK
Balance at beginning of year P496,948 P496,948 P496,048
Issuance during the year 27 57,118 - -
Balance at end of year 554,066 496,048 496,948
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of year 59,473 59473 39,473
Issuance during the year 27 1,275,622 - -
Transaction cost on initial public
offering 27 (137,726) . _
Balance at end of year 1,197,369 59,473 59.473
EFFECT OF DILUTION OF
OWNERSHIP 8 (1,018) (1,018) -
REVALUATION INCREMENT ON
LAND
Balance at beginning of year 28 - 274,569 265,995
Transfer to retained earnings & - (274,569) -
Increase in revaluation increment - - 1,072
Effect of change in tax rate - - 7,502
Balance at end of year - - 274 569
RETAINED EARNINGS .
Balance at beginning of year 2,768,272 1,892,317 1,421,041
Net income for the year 760,697 1,001,386 868,745
Transfer from revaluation increment
on land 8 - 274,569 -
Dividends declared 28 - (400,000 (397,469)
Balance at end of year 3,528,969 2,768,272 1,892 317
P5,279.386 P1,323,675 F2.723,307

Swe Notes to the Financizl Siatements,



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts i Thousands)
Years Ended June 30
Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
Note  (SeeNote8) (SeeNote8) (SeeNote 8)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
ncome before income tax P1,060.919 P1,519.627 P1,289,621
Adjustmenis for:
Depreciation and arnortization 20 - 969,611 813,537 703,284
Allowance for probable losses in
values of bottles and cases,
machinery and equipment, idle
assets, impairment losses,
inventory obsolescence and . ‘
others provisions - net 6,79 10 45,722 25,222 93,924
Interest expense 22 35,713 52,439 80,011
Interest income 22 (22,581) (18,050) (14,278)
=hare in net earnings of associates 8 22 (20,028) {6,792) -
Gain on disposal of property and
equipment (1,527) (759) (1,859
Operating income before working
capital changes 2,007,829 2,385,224 2,150,703
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in;
Receivables ] (132,588) (168,955) (78,237)
Inventories 7 (81,106) (115,445) (119,974}
Due from related parties - net 15 {101,282) - -
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets (18.309) (12,370} 4,545
Increase (decrease) in accounts
payable and accrued expenses 12 {112,431) 356,609 113,900
Cash generated from operations 1,562,113 2,445,063 2,070,937
Interest received 22,035 17,934 17,942
Income taxes paid (203,607) (275,758) (328,282)
Interest paid (39,957 {65,988) (80.857)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,340,584 2,121,251 1,679,740

Forwgrd




Years Ended Jupe 30

Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
Note  (SeeNote8) (SeeNote8)  (See Note 8)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposals of property
and equipment 10 P17,681 P5,269 P1,825
Net additions to:
Property, plant and equipment 10 (1,309,518) {918,905) (429,612}
Bottles and cases 9 (693,180) (697,858) (509,289)
Investments in associates & - {632) -
Increase in other assets (7,694) (88,646) (59,089)
Net cagh used in investing activities (1,992,711) (1,700,772) (996,765)
CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of shares of
stocks 1,195,014 - -
Net proceeds from (repayments of):

Notes payable 11 08,500 - (279,800)
Long-term debt 13 (283,333) {166,667} 39,633
Cash dividends paid 28 (400,000) (99,367) (298,102)

Net cash provided by (used in)

financing activities 610,181 (266,034) (538,269)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (41,946) 154,445 144,706
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 632,272 477,827 333,121
CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS AT END QF

YEAR 5 P590),326 P632.272 P477,827

See Notes 1o the Financial Siatements.



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Number of Shares and Par Value per Share and When
Otherwise Stated)

1. Reporting Entity

Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. (the Company) was registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on March §, 1989, primarily to engage in
mwanufacturing, sales and distribution of carbonated soft-drinks (CSD) and non-
carbonated beverages (NCB) to retail, wholesale, restaurants and bar trades. The

Company’s registered office and principal place of business is at Km. 29, National Road,
Tunasan, Muntinlupa City.

The Company’s associate (formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary), Nadeco Realty
Corporation (NRC), was incorporated under Philippine laws primarily to engage in the
real estate business. On February 1, 2007, a change in NRC's capital structure decreased
the Company’s ownership interest to 40% (see Note 8).

2. Basis of Preparation

Statergent of Compliance ‘
The financial statements for fiscal years 2008 and 2007 refer to the accounts of the

Company while the financial statements for fiscal vear 2006 refer to the consolidated
accounts of the Company and NRC (collectively referred to as “Group™). The financial

statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS),

The financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008 were

approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on September 30,
2008.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

Functiona) and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are measured using the currenicy of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates. The financial statements are presented in
Philippine peso, which is also the Company’s finctional currency and all values are

rounded io the nearest thousand except number of shares and par value per share and
when otherwisc indicated. '

Use of Jud: ts and Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires
mapagement 10 make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of

accounting policies and the amounts reported in the financial statements. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and
in any fitture periods affected.



In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
athounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following:

Leases

The Company has entered into various lease agreements as lessee. The Company has
deterniined that the lessor retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out under operating lease agreements. Rent expense
pertaining to these leased propertics amounted to P162 million in 2008, P113 million in
2007 and P95 million in 2006 {see Notes 17, 18 and 19).

Functional Currency

Based on the cconomic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the
Company, the functional currency has been determined to be the Philippine peso. It is the

currency that mainly influences the sales price of goods and the cost of providing these
goods. : :

Contingencies

The Company is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the
probable costs for the resolution of these claims hags been developed in consultation with
outside counsel handling the Company’s defense relating to these matters and is based
upot an analysis of potential results. The Company currently does not believe that these
proceedings will have a material adverse effect on its financial statements. It is possible,
however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the

estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings
(see Note 29). : :

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables

The Company maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level considered
adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The Company performs
regular review of the age and status of these accounts, designed to identify accounts with
objective evidence of impairment and provides these with the appropriate allowance for
impairment osses. The review is accomplished using a combination of specific and
collective assessment approaches, with the impairment losses being determined for each
nisk grouping identified by the Company. The amount and timing of recorded expenses
for any period would differ if the Company made different judgments or utilized different
methodologies. An increase in allowance for impairment losses would increase the
recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets. As of June 30, 2008 and 2007

allowance for impairment losses on receivables amounted to P102 million and P67
million, respectively (see Note 6).

Estimating Net Realizable Value of Inventories

In determining the net realizable value of inventories, the Company considers inventory
obsolescence based on specific identification and as determined by management for
inventories estimated to be unsaleable in the future. The Company adjusts the cost of
inventory 1o a recoverable value at a level considered adequate to reflect market decline
in value of the recorded inventory. The Company reviews on a contimuous basis the
product movement, changes in conswmer demands and introduction of new products to
identify inventories which are to be written down to net realizable values. As of June 30,

2008 and 2007, the amounts to reduce inventories to net realizable values amounted to
P9 million and P15 million, respectively (see Note 7.



Estimating Useful Lives of the Excess of Cost of Containers over Deposit Values

The excess of the acquisition costs of the returnable bottles and cases over their deposit
values is deferred and amortized over their estimated useful lives (EUL) principally
determined by their historical breakage and trippage. A reduction on the EUL of excess
of cost over deposit value would increase amortization and decrease noncurrent assets.
As of June 30, 2008 and 2007, accumulated amortization of excess of cost over deposit

values of returnable bottles and cases amounted to P2.7 billion and P2.3 billion,
respectively (see Note 9).

Estimating Allowance for Unusable Containers

An allowance for unusable containers is maintained based on specific identification and
as determined by management to cover bottles and shells that are no longer considered fit
for use in the business, obsolete or in excess of the Company’s needs. As of
June 30, 2008, allowance for unusable containers amounted to P7 million. There was no
allowance for unusable containers as of Tune 30, 2007 (see Note 9).

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company annually reviews the EUL of property, plant and equipment based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use and updates if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, and technical
or commercial obsolescence. It is possible that future results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in the factors
mentioned. A reduction in the EUL of property, plant and equipment would increase the
recorded depreciation and amortization expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.

The BUL are as follows:
Number of Years
Buildings and leasehold improvements _ 20 or term of the lease,
‘ whichever is shorter
Machinery and other equipment 3-10
Fumniture and fixtures 10

As of June 30, 2008 and 2007, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
amounted to P2.9 billion and P2.2 billion, respectively (see Note 10)

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Other Financial Assets and Nom-
Financial 4ssets

The Company assesses impairment on other financial and non-financial assets whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such asset may

not be recoverable. The factors that the Company considers important which could
trigger an impairment review include the following:

» significant underperformance relative to the expected historical or projected
future operating resutts;

significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for
overall buginess; and ‘

*  significant negative industry or economic trends.

If any indicator exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable arnount.



As of June 30, 2008, none of these impairment indicators exist on the Company's
property, plant and equipment and investments in associates. An impairment loss
amounting to P15 million (included under *Sefling and Distribution Expenses” in the
statements of income) was recognized for marketing cquipment (included under

machinery and other equipment) in fiscal vear 2007. The related allowance was fully
written-off in fiscal vear 2007,

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets :

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each balance sheet
date and reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all ot part of the deferred tax assets to

be utilized. As of June 30, 2008 and 2007, the Company has no unrecognized deferred
tax assets (see Note 14).

Pension and Other Employee Benefits ‘

The determination of the obligation and cost of pension and other employee benefits is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by the actuary in caleulating such
amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rate, rate of expected
return on plan assets and salary increase rate. In accordance with PFRS, actual results
that differ from the Company’s assumptions, subject to the 10% cortidor test, are
accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the
recognized expense and recorded obligations in such future periods, As of June 30, 2008
and 2007, the Company has unrecognized net actuarial gains amounting to P89 million

and unrecognized net actuarial losses amounting to P4 million, respectively (see
Note 26).

3. Signpificant Accounting Policies

The following explains the significant accounting policies which have been adopted in
the preparation of the financial statements:

Adontion of New Standard, Am ent to Standard and Interpretation in 2007

The Company adopted the following nmew standard, amendment to standard and
interpretation effective July 1, 2007, which are relevant to its operations:

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures. This standard introduces new
disclosures to improve the information about financial instruments. It requires the
disclosure of quantitative and qualitative information about exposure to risks arising
from financial instruments, including specified minimum disclosures about credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk, as well as semsitivity analysis to market risk. It
replaces Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 30, Disclosures in the Financial
Statements of Banks and Similar Financial Institutions, and the disclosure
requirements of PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation.
Additional disclosures were included in the financial statements as a result of the
adoption of this standard.

The Company adopted the amendment to the transitional provisions of PFRS 7 as
approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council of the Philippines, which
gives transitory relief with respect to the presentation of comparative information for
the new nisk disclosnres about the nature and extent of risks arising from financial
instruments. Accordingly, the Company did not present comparative information for

the disclosures required by PFRS 7, unless the disclosure was previously required
under PAS 32 (see Notes 4 and 25).



Amendment to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Capital Disclosures.
This amendment introduces disclosures about the entity’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing capital; quantitative data sbout what the entity regards as
capital; whether the entity has complied with any capital requirements; and if it has
not complied, the consequences of such non-compliance, Additional disclosures were

included in the financial statements as a result of the adoption of this amendment (see
Note 4).

Philippine Interpretation - IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions, This interpretation describes how to apply PFRS 2, Share-based
Payment, to share-based payment arrangements mvolving an entity’s own equity
instruments and share-based payment amrangements of subsidiaries involving eguity

instruments of its company. This interpretation has no significant impact on the
financial statements.

New and Revised Standards Not Yet Adopted
The following are the new and revised standards which are not vet effective and have ot
been applied in preparing these financial statements:

PFRS 8, Operating Segments. This will be effective for financial years beginning on
or after Jarmary 1, 2009 and will replace PAS 14, Segment Reporting. This PFRS
adopts a management approach in reporting segment information. The mformation
reported would be that which managemen: uses internally for evaluating the
performance of operating segments and allocating resources to those segments. It is
required for adoption only by entities whose debt or equity instruments are publicly
traded, or are in the process of filing with the SEC for the purposes of issuing any
class of instruments in a public market. The Company will assess the impact of this

standard to its current manner of reporting segment information when it adopts the
standatd on July 1, 2009,

Revised PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The revised standard will be

effective for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2009. The revised

standard introduces “total comprehensive income” (i.c., changes in equity during a
period, other than those changes resulting form transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners), which is presented either in: (a) one statement (i.e., a statement
of comprehensive income); or (b) two statements {(Le,, an income statement and a
statement beginning with profit or loss and displaying components of other
comprehensive income). Certain requirements are also required by revised PAS 1
that are not required by the original standard. The requirements of revised PAS 1 will
be included in the Company’s financial statements upon its adoption in 2009.

Revenue Recopnition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of goods is mecasured at the fair value of the consideration
received oOr receivable, net of returns and discounts. Revenue is recognized when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of
the consideration is probable, the associated costs and posgible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, and there is no continuing involvement with the goods. Transfer of

fisk and rewards of ownership coincides with the delivery of the products to the
customets,



Financial Instruments

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in
the balance sheets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition
and derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting,

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial instruments are recogmized
initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an
asset) or received (in case of a liability). The fair value of the consideration given or
received is determined by reference to the transaction price or other market prices. If
such market prices are not reliably determinable, the fair value of the consideration is
estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts, discounted using the
prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments with similar maturities. The
initial measurement of financial instruments, cxcept for those designated at fair value
through profit and loss (FVPL), includes transaction cost.

Subsequent {0 initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets, available-for-sale (AFS)
investments, FVPL financial assets, and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the investments are acquired and whether they are quoted in an
active market. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recogmition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every
reporting date. Financial instruments are measured as described below:

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash includes cash on hands and in banks. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from dates of
acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

Financial Assets at FVPL. Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognized in
the statements of income. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.

The Company has no investments classified as financial assets at FVPL,

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, They are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and arc not designated
as A¥S or financial asset at FVPL. Loans and receivables are cartied at cost or amortized
cost, less impairment in value. Amortization is determined using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses are recognized in income when the loans and receivables are
derecognized or impaircd, as well as through amortization process.

The Cotnpany’s trade and other receivables and due from related parties are included in
this category (see Notes 6 and 15). '



HIM Investments. HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities for which the Company’s
tanagement has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Where the
Company sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM investinents, the entire
category would be tainted and classified as AFS investments. After initial measuremnent,
these investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
Gains and losses are recognized in the statements of income when the HTM investments
are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process,

The Company has no investments classified under this category.

AFS. AFS investments are non-derivative financial assets that arc designated in this
category or are not classified in any of the other categories. Subsequent fo initial
recognition, AFS investments are carried at fair value in the balance sheets, Changes in
the fair value of such assets are reported in the equity section of the balance shests nntil
the investment is derecognized or the investment is determined to be impaired. On
derecognition or impairment, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is
transferred to the statements of income. Interest eamed on holding AFS investments are
recognized in the statements of income using the effective interest method.

‘The Company has no investments classified under this category.

Financial Liability at FVPL, Financial liabilities are classified in this category if these
result from trading activities or derivative transactions that are not accounted for as

accounting hedges, or when the Company elects to designate a financial liability under
this category.

The Company has no designated financial liability at FVPL.

Other Financial Liobilities. This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held
for trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the ineeption of the liability. These include
liabilities arising from operations or borrowings.

The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried
at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the cffective interest method

of amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly
attributable transaction costs.

Included in this category are the Company’s notes payable, accounts payable and acerued
cxpenses, due to a related party and long-term debt (see Notes 11, 12, 13 and 15).

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

* the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed
an obligation to pay them in full withowt material delay to a third party under & “pass-
through’ arrangement: or

the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows fom the asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has

neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

-7



When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asget nor

transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s
contitiuing involverment in the assct.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
Lability is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial Hability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statements of income.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost -of
inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs necegsary to make the sale,

Determination of Fair Values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures requires the
determination of fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets and habilities. Fair
values have been determined for measurement and disclosure purposes based on the
following methods. When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in
determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

Receivables. The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated ag the present
value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at balance sheet date,

Inventories. The fair value of inventories is determined based on its estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and sale, and
reasomable profit margin based on the effort required to complete and sell inventories.

Other Financial liabilities The fair value is determined as the present values, which
approximate the cash amounts that would fully safisfy the obligations as of balance sheet
date. The carrying amount approximates fair value since the interest rates are repriced

frequently. These arc classificd as current liabilities when they become payable within a
yeat.

Investments in Associates

Associates arc those entities in which the Company has significant influerice, but not
control, aver the financial and operating policies and which are neither subsidiaries nor
joint veniures of the Company. The financial statements include the Company’s share of
the total recognized earnings and losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from
the date that significant infiuence commences until the date that significant influence
ceases. When the Company’s share of losses exceeds the cost of the investment in an
associate, the carrying amount of that interest is rednced to nil and recopnition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.




Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost of investment over the fair vatue of the
net identifiable assets of the investes companies at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment in value, if any. In fiscal
year 2008 and 2007, goodwill is included as part of “Investments in Associates” account.

Bottles and Cases

Bottles and cases include returnable glass bottles and cases stated at deposit values and
the excess of the acquisition costs of refumable bottles and cases over their deposit
values. These are deferred and amortized using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives (5 years for returnable bottles and 7 vears for cases) determined
principally by their actual historical breakage and trippage. An allowance is provided for

oxcess, unusable and obsolete returnable bottles and cases based on the specific
identification method.

Pro Plant and Eguipment '
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost (which comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable cost in bringing the asset to working condition and location for

its intended use) less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs that can be measured reliably are added to the carrying amount of the
asset when it is probable that furure economic benefits associated with the asset will flow

to the Company. The cost of day-to-day servicing of an asset is recognized as expense in
the period i which it is incurred.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the EUL of the assets. Leaschold
improvements are amortized over the EUL of the improvements or the term of the lease,
whichever is shorter.

The EUL and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to ensure that the period and depreciation and amortization method are consistent
with the expected pattern of economic benefits from those assets.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any

resulting gain or loss arising from the retiretnent or disposal is reflected in current
operations.

impaitment

Financial 4ssets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if
objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asser.

An impairment loss in tespect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assefs are assessed collectively in proups that share similar eredit
risk characteristics, All impairment losses are recognized in the statements of income,



Reversal of an impairment loss previously recognized is recorded when the decrense can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment event. Such reversal is
recoghized in the statements of income. However, the increased catrying amount is only
recognized to the extent it does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognized.

Non-Financial Assets

The carmying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets such as investments in
associates, bottles and cases, and property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impainnent loss is recognized in the statements of income whenever the carrying
amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of the asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount
obtatnable from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash flows lareely

independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An 1mpairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset’s carmying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized. Reversals of impairment are recognized in the statements of income.

Advertising and Marke(:ing Costs
Advertising and marketing costs are charged to operations in the year such costs are
incurred.

Finance Income and Expenses

Finance income comprises of interest income on bank deposits and money market
placement, dividend income and foreign currency gains. Interest income is recognized in
the statements of income as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend

mcome is recognized on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is
established.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings and foreign currency losses.
All finance expenses are recognized in the statements of income as they accrue.

Leases

Leases in whach a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership is retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
recognized in the statements of income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Provisions and Contingent iabilities

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. It is recognized when the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and a
reliable estimate can be made of the arnount of the obligation,
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Provisions are revisited at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate, If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money, and, where appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as interest expense,

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Iheome Taxcs

Income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
expense i recognized in the statements of income except to the extent that it relates to
itexns recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates

enacied or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the fiture tax consequences attributable to temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial Teporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes and the carryforward tax benefits of
the net operating loss cartyover (NOLCO) and the excess of minimum corporate income
tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT). The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and Labilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward benefits of NOLCO and MCIT can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

Retirement Plan

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan Covering
substantially all of its regular and full time employees. Retirement costs are actuarially
determined using the projected unit credit method which reflect services rendered by
employees to the date of valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning employees’
projected salaries. Actuarial gains and Josses that exceed 10% of the greater of the
present valtue of the Company’s defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan

assets are amortized over the expected average working lives of the participating
employees.

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and actuarial gains and losses not recognized reduced by past servige cost not
yet recognized and the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligation are to be
settled directly. If such aggregate is negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such
aggregate or the aggregate of the cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past
service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of

refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions of the plan (the asset
ceiling test).
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The Company recognizes past service cost as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
average vesting period. The Company recognizes past service cost immediately to the

extent that the benefits are already vested following the introduction of, or changes to, the
plan.

Foreign Exchange Transactions

The functional and presentation cumency of the Company is the Philippine peso.
Trangactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Philippine peto based on the prevailing
exchange rates at the date of the transactions. Foreign currency denominated monetary
assefs and habilities are translated wsing the exchange rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains or losses arising from translation of foreign currency
denorminated items at rates different from those at which they were previously recorded
arc credited or charged to current operations.

Earnings Per Share (EPS
Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income by the weighted average number of

common shares outstanding during the period, with retroactive adjustments for any stock
dividends declared.

Segment Reporting
The Company’s operating business is organized and managed according fo the nature of

the products provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that
offers different products and serves different markets.

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and opetating
decisions. It includes companies in which one or more of the directors and/or controlling
stockholders of a company either have a heneficial controlling interest or are in a position
to exercise significant influence therein,

Events After the Balance Sheet Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at
the balance sheet date (adjusting events) are recognized in the financial statements. Post

year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statemcnts when material,

4. Financial Risk Management -

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial Instruments;

Credit Risk
* Liguidity Risk
* Market Risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks,
the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and
the Company’s management of capital. Further quantitetive disclosures are included
throughout these financial statements, mainly in Note 25 to the financial statements.

The main putpose of the Company’s dealings in financial instrurnents is to fund its
operations and capital expenditures.
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The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework, The BOD has established the Executive
Committee (EXCOM), which is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk management policies. The EXCOM identifies all issues affecting the
operations of the Company and reports regularly to the BOD on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the -
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk lmits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. All risks
faced by the Company are incorporated in the annual operating budget. Mitigating
strategies and procedures are also devised to address the risks that inevitably occur 8o as
not to affect the Company’s operations and detriment forecasted results. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.

The Audit Commitiee performs oversight over financial management functions,
specifically in the areas of managing credit, liquidity, market and other risks of the
Company. The Audit Committee directly interfaces with the internal audit function,
which undertakes reviews of risk management controls and procedures and ensures the
integrity of internal control activities which affect the financial management system of

the Company. The results of procedures performed by Internal Audit are reported to the
Audit Commuittes.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss the Company would incur if credit customers and
counterparties fail to perform their contractual obligations. The Company’s credit risk
arises principally from the Company’s trade receivables.

The Plant Credit Committees have established a credit policy under which each new
cugtomer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness before standard credit terms and
conditions are granted. The Company’s review includes the requirements of updated
credit application documents, credit verifications through the use of no negative record
requests and list of blacklisted accounts, and analyses of financial performance to ensure
credit capacity. Credit limits are established for each customer, which serve as the
maximum open amount at which they are allowed to purchase on credit, provided that
credit terms and conditions are observed.

The credit limit and status of each customer’s account are first checked before processing
a credit transaction. Customers that fail to meet the Company’s conditions in the credit
checking process may transact with the Comipany only on cash basis.

It is the Company’s policy to conduct an annual credit review through identification and
summarization of under-performing customers and review and validation of credit
violation reports. Based on the summary, the Plant Credit Committees may upgrade,
downgrade, suspend and cancel credit lines.

Most of the Company’s customers have been transacting with the Company for several
years, and losses have occurred from time to time. Customer credit risks are monitored
throngh annual credit reviews conducted on a pet plant basis. Results of credit reviews
are grouped and summarized according to credit charaeteristics, such as geographic
location, aging profile and eredit violations. Historically, credit violations have been
attributable to bounced checks, and denied, fictitious or absconded credit accounts.
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Collateral securities are required for credit limit applications that exceed certain
 thresholds (see Note 25). The Company has policies for acceptable collateral securities
that may be presented upon submission of credit applications.

Liguidity Risk

Liqudity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations as they fall due. The Company manages liquidity risk by forecasting
projected cash flows and maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility. Treasury controls and procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is
maintained to cover daily operational and working capital requirements. Managernent
closely monitors the Company’s future and contingent obligations and sets up required
cash reserves as necessary in accordance with internal requirements.

In addition, the Company has the following credit facilities as of June 30, 2008:

“ Omnibus line of credit with a number of Philippine banks consisting of
commitments for short-term loans, letters of credit and documents against
acceptances/documents against payment (DA/DP) facilities trust receipts, The
total commitment under the line of credit is P2 billion, of which the Company
had drawn P411 million under letters of credit and short-term loan as of
June 30, 2008, All facilities under the omnibus line bear interest at floating rates
consisting of a margin over current Philippine treasury rates; and

" P480 million domestic bills purchased line, which is currently available,

Market Rigk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
Interest rates and other market prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market tisk management is to manage

and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

The' Company is subject to various market risks, including risks from changes in
commadity prices, interest rates and cutrency exchange rates.

Commodity Prices

The risk from commodity price changes relates to the Company’s ability to recover
higher product costs through price increases to customers, which may be limited due to
the competitive pricing environment that exists in the Philippinc beverage market and the
willingness of consumers to purchase the same volume of beverages at higher prices.
The Company’s most significant commeodity exposure is to the Philippine sugar price.

The Company minimizes its exposure to tisks in changes in commodity prices by
entering into contracts with suppliers with duration ranging from six months to one year

with fixed volume commitment for the contract duration and with stipulation for price
adjustments depending on market prices.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rate relates pritnarily
to its debt obligations with variable interest rates. The Treasury Departmerit, through its
competencies of managing debt obligations, transacts with creditors to ensure the most
advantageous terms and to reduce exposure to risk of changes in marker interest rate,
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency tisk on purchases that are denominated in
currencies other than the Philippine peso, mostly in U.S. dollar and EURO. In respect of
monetary assets and liabilities held in currencics other that the Philippine peso, the
Company ensures that its exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by maintaining short-
term cash placements th U.S. dollar and buying foreign currencies at spot rates where

necessary to address short-term imbalances. The management considerad the exposure to
interest rate risk to be insignificant.

Capital Managetnent

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to increase the value of
sharcholders’ investment and maintain high growth by applying free cash flow to
selective investments that would further the Company’s geographic diversification. The

Company sets strategies with the objective of establishing a versatile and resourcefid
financial management and capital structure,

The Chief Financial Officer has overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in
proportion to risk. Profiles for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the

Company’s external environment and the risks underlying the Company’s business
operations and industry.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio which is calculated
as total debt divided by total equity, Total debt is cquivalent to notes payable and long-
term debt. Total equity comprises all components of equity including capital stock,
additional paid-in ¢apital and retained eamings.

The Company has externally-itposed capital requirements arising from its loans with
local banks. Such loan agreements include the requirement to maintain a debt-to-equity

ratio of not greater than 2:1. The Company has complied with such externally-imposed
capital requirements as of June 30, 2008 and 2007.

‘The debt-to equity ratios ate as follows:

2008 2007

Debt
Notes payabie P147,100 P48,600
Long-term debt - 283,333
Total debt P147,100 P331,933
Equity P5,279,386 P3,323,675
Debt-to-equity ratio 0.028:1 0.099:1

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

2008 2007
Cash on hand and in banks P146,183 P200,919
Short-tenm investments 444,143 431,353
P590,326 P632.272

-15-



Cash in banks eams interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Shori-term investrments
are made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company and earn interest at the respective short-term investrment

rates.

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk and sensitivity analyses are disclosed in

Note 25.

6. Receivables

Receivables consist of
Nete 2008 2007
Trade 25 P917,272 P840,364
Related party 15 36,877 10,487
Others 66,885 43 635
1,021,034 894,436
Less allowance for impairment losses 102,082 67,391
P918,952 PR27.005

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and arc generally on a 30 to 60 days term.

The movements in the aliowance for impairment losses during the period are as follows:

Amount
Balance at July 1, 2006 P105,400
Impairment loss recognized during the vear -
Receivables written-off during the year {38,009
Balance at June 30, 2007 67,391
Impairment loss recognized during the vear 41,277
Receivables written-off during the year (6,586)
Balance at June 30, 2008 P102,082

The Company’s exposure to credit risk refated to trade and other receivables is disclosed

in Note 25.
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7. Inventories

. Inventories consist of

Note 2008 2007
Finished goods: 11
At cost P359,021 P311,658
At net realizable value 358,140 311,658
Work in process; 1i
At cost 10,812 9,723
At net realizable value 10,812 9,723
Raw and packaging materials: 11
At cost 227,376 213,045
At net realizable value : 218,985 198,237
Spare paris and supplies:
At cost 91,086 81,281
At net realizable value 90,996 81,281
Total inventories at lower of cost or net
realizable value P678.933 P&00,899

Under the terms of agreements covering liabilities under trust receipts, certain inventories

have been released to the Company in trust for certnin local banks. The Company is
accountable to these banks for the trusteed inventories (see Note 11).

In addition, the Company’s notes payable is secured by mortgage trusts indentures on
various assets, which include P230 million of inventories as of June 30, 2008.

8. Investments in Associates

Investiments in associates congigt oft

Note 2008 2007
Acquisition cost:
NRC P232.508 P232.508
Nadeco Holdings Corporation (NHC) 132 132
232,640 232,640
Effect of dilution of ownership tn NRC (1,018) (1,018)
| 231,622 231,622
Accumulated equity in net earnings:
Balance at the beginning of the year 273,852 267,060
Share in net eamnings of associates 22 20,028 6,792
Balance at the ¢nd of the year 293,880 273,852
P525,502 P505,474
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On February I, 2007, the Company invested P132 for a 39.8% interest in NHC, a
domestic company organized on May 10, 2006 primarily to efigage in management of
real and otber properties. On the same date, NRC issued additiona] shares to the
Company and NHC in exchange for cash. A larger number of voting shares was issued to
NHC, which led to the eventual dilution of the Company’s intercst in NRC from 100% to
40% resulting in a loss of control. Accordingly, the accounts of NRC ceased to be
consolidated into the accounts of the Company starting February 1, 2007 and are

accounted for as an associate using the equity method of accounting from such date. As a
result, the following accounts were affected:

* Land owned by NRC is no longer shown as land in the financial statements of the
Company (see Note 10). Accordingly, the balance of revaluation increment (mecluded
in the accumulated equity in net earnings line item in the table above) relating to the
fair value adjustments of the said property in prior periods was reclassified to
“Retained Earnings” account in the 2007 statement of changes in equity
(see Note 28) since from NRC’s point of view, the land is considered ag “Investment
Property” and accordingly, changes in fair value of the investment property will be
recognized in profit and loss. The corresponding deferred tax liability related to the
said land was also derecognized.

" Receivables and payables between the Company and NRC are no longer eliminated.
Likewise, rent income and expense between the Company and NRC are no longer
fully elizminated (see Note 15). :

*  The dilution of the Company’s investment in NRC was recognized as an adjustment
~ to equity in 2007.

The 2006 Group statement of income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows reflect the consolidated accounts of the Company and NRC {which was then
accounted for as a subsidiary). Intra-group balances and any unrealized gains and losses
or income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
consolidation. Unrealized gains arising from transactions with subsidiaries are eliminated
to the exient of the Group's interest in the entity. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the

same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

The financial reporting date of NRC and NHC is June 30. The application of the equity
method of accounting is based on the Company’s interest in the net profits and net assets
of NRC and NHC of 99.9% and 39.8%, respectively.

The foliowing are the summarized financial information pertaining to the Company’s
associates:

As of June 30, 2008

Assets  Liabiliéies Equity Revenues  Net Income
NRC P791,483 P274.407 P517.076 P34,348 19,941
NHC {consolidated) 792,021 275,081 516,940 34,349 20,325
As of hune 30, 2007
Assct; Liabilitics Equity Revenues  Net Income
NRC P750,338 P253,204 P49T, 134 F15,642 Pg.283
NHC {consolidated) 750425 253,720 496,705 11,946 6,850
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9. Rottles and Cases

Bottles and Cases consists of:

Note 2008 2007
Deposit values of retumnable bortles and
cases on hand - net of allowance for
unusable containers of P7,386 in 2008 1] P305,576 P312,097
Excess of cost over deposit values of
returnable bottles and cases - net of
accwmulated amortization 11 1,635,490 1,341,914
1,941,066 1,654,611
Bottles in transit 31,588 33,570
P1,972.654 P1,687,581

There was no allowance for unusable containers as of Tune 30, 2007 due to the wtite-off
and reversal during the fiscal year 2007.

The roliforward of excess of cost over deposit values of refurnable bottles and cases is as

follows:
Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
(See Note 8)  (See Note 8)  (See Note 8)
Gross carrying amoupnt;
Balance at beginning of year 13,633,724  P3,025.680 P2,555,376
Additions 683,978 608,044 470,304
Balance at the end of year 4,317,702 3,633,724 3,025,680
Accemulated smortization:
Balance at beginning of year 2,291,810 1,964,922 1,705,780
Amortization for the year 379,599 329,079 259716
Other movements 10,803 (2,191) (574)
Balance at the end of year 2,682,212 2,201,810 1,964,922
Carrying amount:
Balance at beginning of year P1,341,914 P1,060,758 P849,596
Balance at end of year P1,635,490  P1,341,914 P1,060,758
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment

The movements in this account are as follows:

Machinery and Ruildings and

Other Leasebold  Constroction Furniturs
Land Repuip 3 Improvementy in Progress  and Fixtures Tutal
Measvrsment basis Revalued Cost Cost Loge Cogt
Crgsa carrying amaunt:
Juby 1. 20086 (Group) P&91,598 P4, 753.042 P555,73) PG5,350 P23.537  P6089.257
Addiiona - 205,562 [z, 104 539,803 1,130 D18,905
Effect of deconsolidation (651,508) - - - n (691.598)
Dispoaals/write-offs - (359,560) {5.510) - 08)  (364,076)
Tranafers . 144,738 4,373 (149,201} 90 -
June 3Q, 2007 / July t, 20G7
{Company) - 4.904 082 £66.897 455052 24,651 54952488
Additions - 728,216 88,536 491 299 1,457 1.309.518
Disposals/write-offs - (56.549) (5.624) (11.964) - {74130
Tmnsfars - 714,008 8,463 (723,051 484} -
June 3, 2008 - 6,290,757 6ok, 172 211134 26,608 T137,873
Aceurrutated deprachation,

amortization gt
impaicment lneag:

July 1, 2006 (Group) “ 3277418 352,034 - 19,595 3,649,052
Depreciation and

amortization - 433,438 30,235 - TH3 424 458
Impairment losses - 20,436 - - - 2436
Disprssrlsfwrnite-ofts - (357.773) {1,686) (106) {359,555}
June 30, 2007 / July 1. 2007

{Company) - 33931509 380,588 - 20,274 3.794,381
Depreciziion and

amortization - 553,149 36,115 - 148 500,017
Disposatsiwrite-offe - (32,874 (5,109) - - {57,070
June 30, 2008 - 3,803,704 411,508 - 2,022 4316414
Carrying amount:
Tune 30, 2007 (Company) P - P1,511 46% P186.309 P433,052 F4377  PL158,107
June 39, 208 (Company) L P2,306.943 P246,674 212,236 P5586  P2,861.450

The above parcels of land are owned by NRC and were reappraised in fiscat year 2006 by
an independent firm of appraisers based on their market values as of the said date. The
revajuation increase was presented under the “Revaluation Increment on Land” account
in the 2006 statement of changes in equity. Had the land been carried at cost, its carrying
amount would have been P263,357. In fiscal year 2007, due to the deconsolidation of
NRC, land was no longer included in the “Property, Plant and Equiptnent™ account of the
Company (see Notes 1 and 8).

A substantial portion of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and certain parcels
of land owned by NRC, with a total collateral value of P1.4 billion are mortgaged and

placed in trust under two mortgage trust indentures to securc the Company’s outstanding
debt (see Notes 11 and 13).

In fiscal year 2007, an impairment loss amounting to P15 million (included under
“Selling and Distribution Expenses” in the statement of income) was recognized for
marketing equipment.

11. Notes Payabls

This account represents short-term loans from various local banks which are payable in
lump sum on their respective maturity dates up to July 10, 2008, Interest rates on the said
loans are repriced monthly based on negotiated rates or prevailing market rates. The
short-term loans are secured by morigage trust indentures on inventories, bottles and
cases, and real estate, which include certain restrictions and requirements (see Note 13).
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Interest rates range from 6.00% to 6.25% for the year ended Fune 30, 2008, from 7.00%
to 8.00% for 2007, and from 8.00% to 9.00% for 2006.

_ Information about the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk and liquidity risk is
disclosed in Note 25.

12. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of*

Nore 2007 2007
Trade payables 7,13 P1,485,148 P1,632,272
Accrued expenses 469,264 349 265
Others 26 125,582 219,711

P2,079,994  P2,201248

The Comparny’s exposure to liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed
n Note 25.

13. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consists of:

2008 2007

Local banks, payable in equal quartetly installments P - P283,333
Less current portion | - 241,666
F - P41,667

The loan agreements and the mortgage trust indentures securing all the long-term debt

~ from locai banks and a portion of the notes payable (see Note 11), include certain
restrictions and requirements with respect to, among others, changes in the Company’s
nature of business and business ownership, disposition and hypothecation of assets,
material advances to stockholders and officers, entering into mergers and consolidations,
incurrence of additional debt and maintenance of certain financial ratios.

The long-term debt from two local banks, with respective maturity dates up to October 6,
2009, were pre-terminated during the vear.

Inferest rates range from 6.00% to 6.25% for the year ended June 30, 2008, from 7.00%
to 8.00% for 2007, and from 8.00% to 9.00% for 2006,
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14, Income Taxes

The componentis of the income tax expense are as follows:

Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
_ (See Note 8)  (See Note 8)  (See Note 8)
Current tax expense and final taxes on
Interest income:
Current period P81.302 P363,235 P419,083
Prior period {171,236) - -
Deferred tax expense from
origination and reversal of
temporary differences and others 330,156 155,006 893
P2406.,222 P518,241 P420,876

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) - net are antributable to the following:

o 2008 2007
Accrual for retivement costs P70,709 P64 006
Allowance for probable losses in values of bottles

and cases, idle assets, impairment losses,

inventory obsolescence and other provisions 68,584 41,979
Past service cost 35188 22,799

Fxcess MCIT 29,103 -
203,584 128,874

Bottles and cases (368,195) -
Marketing equipment (125,101) (88,430)
(493,.296) (88,430)
(P289,712) P40,444

In 2008, the Company received a ruling from the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)
which allowed acceleration of deductions on marketing equipment and bottles and cases,
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The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate to
the income tax expense shown in the statements of incomne is as follows:

Company Company Group
, 2008 2007 2006
(SecNote8) (SeeNote 8)  (See Note §)
Income before incotne tax P1,600,919 P1,519,627 P1,289 621
Expected tax at 35% P350,322 P531,869 P438,472
Additions to (reductions in) income
tax resulting from the tax effects of:
Nondeductible expenses 2,757 2,528 4,839
Change in tax rate {51,607) (45) (15,981)
Transaction cost charged to equity C {48,204) - -
Share in net earnings of associates (7,010) (2.377) -
Interest income subjected to final tax (6,565) (4.979) (4,854)
Changes in unrecognized deferred
tax assets - - (1,051)
Others 529 (8,755) (549

P240,222 P518,241 P420,876

On May 24, 2005, Republic Act No. 9337 entitled “An Act Amending the National

Internal Revenue Code, as Amended, with Salient Features™ (Act), was passed into a law
effective November 1, 2005,

The Act includes the following significant revisions to the rules of taxation, among
others:

a. Increase in the corporate income tax rate from 329 to 35% with a reduction thereof
to 30% starting January 1, 2009 and onwards:

b. Increase in unaliowable interest rate from 38% to 42% with a reduction thereof to
33% beginning January 1, 2009;

c. Inerease in value added tax (VAT) rate from 10% to 12% effective February 1. 2006

as authorized by the Philippine President pursuant to the recominendation of the
Secretary of Finance; and

d. Expanded scope of transactions subject to VAT,

On October 10, 2007, Revenue Regulation No. 12-2007 was issued providing for the
payment of MCIT which shall likewisc apply at the time of filing of the quarterly
corporate income tax. as prescribed under Section 75 and 77 of the Tax Code, as

amended. MCIT shall thus be paid in same manner as the RCIT, which is on a quarterly
and yearly basis.
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15. Related Party Transactions

The Company has significant related party transactions which are summarized as
follows:

a. The Company has exclusive bottling agreements with PepsiCo, Inc. (PepsiCo), which
has 29.49% beneficial interest in the Company, up to year 2017 and Pepsi Lipton
International Limited (Pepsi Lipton), a joint venture of Pepsico, up to year 2012.
Under the agreements, the Company is authorized to bottle, sell and distribute
PepsiCo and Lipton beverage products in the Philippines, In addition, PepsiCo and
Pepsi Lipton shall supply the Company with the main raw materials (concentrates) in
the production of these beverage products and share in the funding of ceriain
marketing programs. The agreements may be renewed by mutual agreement between
the parties. Under the agreements, PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton have the right to
terminate the Company’s contracts under certain conditions, including failure to
comply with terms and conditions of the appointment subject to written notice and
rectification period, change of ownership control of the Company, change of
ownership control of an entity which controls the Company, discontinuance of
bottling beverages for 30 consecutive days, occurrence of certajn events leading to
the Company’s insolvency or bankruptcy, change in management and control of the
business, among other things. Total net purchases from PepsiCo amounted to Pl
billion and P2 billion in fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively. Total purchases
from Pepsi Lipton for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 amounted to P64R miflion.

The Company has a cooperative advertising and marketing program with PepsiCo
and Pepsi Lipton that sets forth the agreed advertising and marketing activities and
participation arrangement during the years covered by the bottling agreements. In
certain instances, the Company pays for the said expenses and claims reimbursement
from PepsiCo. As of June 30, 2008, reimbursable marketing charges from PepsiCo
amounted to P99 million. For the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the

Company incurred marketing expenses amounting to P665 million, P468 million and
P424 million, respectively,

b. On April 11, 2007, the Company entered into & Performance Agreement with
PepsiCo, Orion Brands International (Orion Brands), Guoco Assets (Phils.), Inc. and
Hong Way Holdings, Inc. to meet certain marketing and investment levels from 2007
to 2017, as required by the botiling agreement with Pepsico. The agreement requires
the Company to: (1) spend a specified percentage with a minimum amount for the
beverage products; (2) make certain investments based on a mininum percentage of
the Company’s sales to expand the Company’s manufacturing capacity; (3) invest in
a minimum number of coclers per year to support distribution expansion; and
{4) expand the Company’s distribation capabilities in terms of the number of active

routes, the number of new routes and the number of trucks used for distribution
support.

c. Certain real estale properties of NRC were mortgaged to secure the Company’s

outstanding long-term debt and a portion of its notes payable (see Notes 10, 11
and 13).

d. The Company leases certain parcels of land where some of its bottling plants are
located from NRC. Lease expense recognized on these leases amounted to P11
million in 2008 and P3 million in 2007. There were no lease expenses recogiized on

these leases before January 31, 2007 as 2 result of the elimination in the
consolidation (see Note §),
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€. Working capital advances. The Company’s advences to NRC amounting to P38
million bear interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annurn.

The effects of the foregoing transactions are shown under the appropriate accounts in

the financial statements.

Related Parties

Relationship Note 2008 2007
Due from related parties:
NRC Associate P145,523 P133,286
PepsiCo Stockholder 98,775 -
NHC Associate 1,375 1,182
P245,673 P134,468
PepsiCo (included under
“Receivables” account)  Stockholder 7] P36.877 P10,487
Dus 1o a telated party -
NRC Associate P62,02] P33.453

In addition to their salaries, the Company also provides non-cash benefits to executive
officers and contributes to & defined benefit retirement plan on their behalf,

The compensation and benefits of key management personnel are as follows:

Company . Company Group
2008 2007 2006
(See Note8) (SeeNote8) (SeeNote 8)
Short-term employee benefits F78,304 P66,168 P69.824
Post-employment benefits 3,721 3,511 3,402
P82,025 £69,679 P73,226
16. Net Sales
Net sales consist off
Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
(See Note 8)  (SeeNote 8)  (See Note §)
Gross sales P15,283,095 P15062,155 P123803381
Less sales returns and discounts 2,302,209 2,145,943 1,810,569
P12,980,886 FP12,916,212 P10,992,812
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17. Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold consists of

Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006

Note  (SeeNote8) (SeeNote8) (See Note &)
Materials and supplies used 15 P6,617,972 P6,679,823 P5,565,414
Delivery and freight 713,597 646,252 450,232
Depreciation and amortization 20 654,400 561,242 485,387
Rental and utilities 29 261,934 248 264 218,772
Others 21, 26 616,468 624,455 532,961
P8,864,371 P8,760,036  P7.252,766

18. Selling and Distribation Expenses
Selling and distribution expenses consiat of:

Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006

Note  (SeeNote8) (SesNote8) (See Note §)
Dristribution . P438.582 P400,295 P341,893
Personnel expenses 15,21, 26 388,696 347,940 329,423
Depreciation and amortization 20 269,348 211,081 183,071
Delivery and freight 193,776 192,488 141,536
Rental and utilities 29 131,703 108,413 82,743
Others 362,300 310,515 356,107
P1,784.405 P1,570,682 P1,434,773

19. General and Administrative Expenses
Ceneral and administrative expenses consist of:

Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006

Note  (SeeNote8) (SeeNote8) (See Note 8)
Personnel expenses 13,21, 26 P400,456 P336,067 P295,687
Rental and utilities 15,29 88,838 69,285 49,918
Outside services 73,883 72,714 05,242

Others 20 140,542 144,030 125474
F703,719 P622,096 P536,311
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20. Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization are distributed as follows:

Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
Note _ (See NoteB) (SeeNote®)  (See Note 8)
Cost of sales:
Property, plant and equipment P274,.801 P232,163 P225,671
Bottles and cascs 379,599 328,079 259,716
17 654,400 561,242 485,387
Selling and distribution expenses: ‘
Property, plant and equipment 78 269,348 211,031 183,071
Genera} and administrative
eXpenses: ‘
Property, plant and equipment /9 45,863 41,264 34,826
P969.611 P&13,537 P703,284
21. Personnel Expenses
Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
Note  (SeeNote §) (SeeNote8)  (See Note §)
Salaries and wages 17,18, 19 P270,446 P860,320 P305,196
Retirement cost 26 67,708 67,276 52,048
F1.638,154 P927,596 P857,244
The above amounts are distributed as follows:
Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
B Note  (SeeNote8) (SeeNote8) (See Note 8
Cost of sales 17 P249,002 - P243.589 P232,134
Selling and distribution .
EXPENSCS 18 388,696 347,940 329,423
Gieneral and administrative
expenses 19 400,456 336,067 295,687
P1,038,154 P927.590 PR57.244
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22. Net Finance and Other Income (Expense)

Net finance income and other income (expense) consists of:

Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
Note  (See Note8) (SeeNote 8)  (See Note 8}
Interest income 15 P22,581 P18,050 P14,278
Share in net earnings of
associates & 20,028 6,792 -
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 4,319 (13,261) (1,361)
Interest expense 11, 13 (35,713) (52.439) (80,011)
Other income - net 26,248 65,378 11,822
P37.463 P24 520 (P55,272)
23. Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is computed as follows:
Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
(See Note8)  (SeeNote8)  (See Note 8)
Net income (a) P764,697 P1,001,386 P368,745
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding (b)* 3,471,648,925 3,312,089,386 3,312,989,386
Basic EPS (a/b) Po.22 F0.30 P0.26

* Weighted average nuiriber of sharcs outstanding for fiseal year 2008 is based on the total issuance during the period

=nuitipiied by the number of months outstanding over one vear and numbet of shares ontstanding shares throughont the
year.

As of June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company has no dilutive debt or equity
instruments,

24. Segment Information

As discussed in Note 1, the Company is engaged in the manufacture, sales and
distribution of CSD and NCB. Since its start of commercial operations in 1989, the

Company’s main products are CSD which include brands ike Pepsi-Cola, 7Up,
Meountain Dew and Mirinda.

The Company began its distribution of NCB products to its consumers following the
mstallation of NCB production lines in the Muntinlupa Plant in December 2004. The
NCB brand category includes Gatorade, Tropicana/Twister, Lipton and the recently
introduced Sting energy drink and Propel fitness water.

Accordingly, the Company operates in two (2) reportable business segments, which
include the CSD and NCB categorics, and only one (1) reportable geographical segment
which is the Philippines. Thus, a secondary geographic reporting format is not applicable.
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Analysis of financial information by business segment is as follows:

Company Company Grovp Company Company Group Company Compauy  Group
Carbonated Soft Drinks Nencarhonated Beverayres Combined

{Im 00,0005 2008 2007 2006 2608 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Net Sales
Extetnai sales r12,390 PI12,736 PI0.950 P2,593 F1326  PLE53 PF15283 PI5.067  PI12.803
Salex discounts and netuens (1,085 (1.962y  (1.688) (at7 {184} {123) 2302 (2146) (131D
Met sales P10.405 PID774  PR262 PLESTG P2.142  FPI1,730 FIL987  PI2%16  P10992
Resuit
Segment esult* F3,500 F3,330  Pl234 Fa7 Pa0G PaGe P4,117 F4.156 P1.740)
Unattocated sxpanges (3,153 (2665}  (2.395)
Interest and financing expenye: (3e) (52} {30}
Tmierest income 23 1% 14
Foreign eachange loss - net () {13 (n
Equity in nat sarnings of

ansoCistey 24 7 -
Onbet income (expenzes) -

net 34 59 i2
Incoime tax expense {2400 (318) 421y
Net lncame P61 P1,002 P69
Other Information
Seyment assets P7,381 P5.968 P5.445
Inveatments in and advances

0 agsoviates 526 430 -
Crther assets 138 138 Ta
Dreferred tax assets - 40 195
Combined toial asgets PE,D45 P6,785 P56
Sepment Habilitias P232K F2.392 P2,057
Tates payvable 147 459 49
Long-term debit - 28% 450
Incote and other taxee

payable - 338 220
Dividends payable and

others - 4030 a0
Deferred tax Habilities 290 - 118
Combined total Habititics PLTE5  P3462 Paaa2
Capital expenditures PL003 Fl.592 P39

~ Depreciation snd
T amprtzation and

impairment of property,

plant and equipment 963 814 703
Moncash items other than

depreciation and

amoHimign 49 30 4

* Segment expanses were allocated thyough the percentage of sach reportable segment’s not sales over the total net sales,

There were no intersegment sales recognized between the two reportable segments.

Assets and hiabilities of the Company are

particular segment.

not specifically identifiable or allocated to each

25_ Financial Instritiments

Credit Risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk as at Fune 30, 2008 is as follows:

Amount

Receivables - net P918,952
Cash 1n bank and cash equivalents 581,973
P1,500,925
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The Company’s most significant type of customer pertains to modern trade channel,
which accounts for P36] million of the gross trade receivables amount as of June 30,
2008.

'The aging of trade receivables as of June 30, 2008 is as follows:

_ June 30, 2008
Gross Amount Impairment
Current P518,732 P -
Past due 0-30 days 211,240 -
Past due 31-60 days 69,315 -
More than 60 days 117,985 75,228
P917.272 P75,.228

Various collateral securities such as bank guarantees, time deposits, surety bonds, real
estate and/or chattel mortgages are held by the Company for trade receivables exceeding

certain amounts.

Liquiditv Risk

The following are the contractual matutities of financial liabilities, mcluding estimated
interest payments and excluding the irapact of netting agreements:

Ag of June 36, 2008

Carrying Contractual 6 Months or
Amount Cash Flow lesg

Financial linbilitles
Notes payable PHTI00 P147.890 P147.890
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,079,994 2,070,994 2,079,994
Due to 2 related party 62,021 62,021 62.021
P2,289,115 P2.289.905 2,289,005

Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30, 2008, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial
instrunents is as follows:

Amounts
Financial assets P463,947
Financial liabilities (147,100)

P316,847

Sensitivity Analysis

A 2% increase in interest rates would have increased equity and profits for the vear ended
June 30, 2008 P6.3 million. :

A 2% decrease in interest rates for the year ended June 30, 2008 would have had the
cqual but opposite effect, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

Fair Values

The camrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities approximate fair values due to
the short-termn nature of these financial instruments.
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26. Retivement Plan

The Company has a funded, non contributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its regular and full time employees. Annual cost is determined using
the projected unit credit method, The Company’s latest actuarial valuation date is

June 30, 3008, The actuarial valuation is made on an annual basis.

The reconciliation of the assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheets is shown

below:

2008 2007

Present value of defined benefit obligations P333,886 P366.031
Fair value of plan assets 195,117 148,454

Unfunded obligations 138,769 217,577
Unrecognized net actuarial gains (losses) 38,593 (3,923)

Accmed retirement cost k227,362 P213.654

The accrued retirement costs are classified in the balance sheets as follows:

2008 2007

Accounts payable and accrued expenses P40,785 P9,745

Accrued retirement cost (long-term) 186,577 203,909

P227,362 P213,654

. The components of retircment cost recognized in the statements of income are as follows:

. Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
_ (SeeNote8) (SeeNote8) (SeeNote )
Current service cost . P35.469 P39,394 P26,025
Interest cost 33,649 38,452 33,552
Past service cost 13,977 - -
Expected return on plan assets (15,387) (13,539) (7,529)
Amortization of wnrecognized net
__ actuarial loss - 2,969 -
Net retirement cost P67,708 P67.276 P52,048
Actual retrn on plan assets P3,725 P7.241 P4,362
The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
2008 2007
Balance at beginning of year P366,031 P409,035
Cutrent service cost 35,469 39,304
Interest cost : 33,649 38,452
Past service cost 13,977 -
Benefits pard (11,062) (16,209
Actuarial gain (104,178) {104,661y
Balance at end of year P333 886 P366,031




The movements in the fair value of plan assets are shown below:

, 2008 2007
Balance at beginning of year P148,454 P111,472
Contributions 54,000 62,000
Benefits paid (11,062) (13,013)
Expectaed return 15,387 13,539
Net actuarial Joss (inclusive of experience
adjustment) {11,662) (25.544)
Balance at end of year P195,117 P148.454

The pension cxpense is recognized in the following accounts in the statements of income:

Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006

Note _(See Note 8)  (See Note 8) (See Note 8)
Cost of goods sold 17 P14,498 P25,495 P19,024
Operating expenses 18, 19 53,210 41,781 33,024
P67,708 P67.276 P52,048

The allocation. of the fair value of plan assets of the Coempany as of June 30, 2008 and
2007 foliows:

2008 2007
Investment in fixed income securities 99%, 989,
Investment it shares of stocks 1% 2%

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted
averages) are as follows:

Amnnual rates 2008 2007
Discount rate 10.00%, 9.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 10.00% 9.00%
Rate of future salary increase 5.00% 7.00%

The historical information of the amounts is as follows:

Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006
(See Note 8)  (See Note 8) (See Note 8)
Present value of the defined benefit
obligation P333,886 P366,031 P409,055
_Fair value of plan assets 195,117 148,454 111,472
Deficit in the plan (138,769) (217,577) (297,583)
Expenience adjustments on plan
Habilities (5,0603) (42,167) -
Expericnce adjustments on plan
assets - (19,246) -
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27. Capital Stock

This account consists oft

2008 2007

. Shares Amount Shares Amount

Authorized - 715 ‘
par value £,000.000,000 P750, 006 5,000,000,000 P750,000

Issued and outsianding:
Balance at beginning of year 3,312,989,386 F4%6,948 3,312,989,386 P496,948
lssuance during the year 380,782,803 57.118 - -
Balance at end of year 3,693,772,27% P534,066 3,312,989 386 P426,945

On February 1, 2008, the Company’s initial public offering of 1,142,348,680 shares at
P3.50 per share culminated with the listing and trading of its shares of stocks under the
First Board of the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. Of the total shares offered,
380,782,893 shares pertain to the primary offering, which resulted in an increase in
capital stock amounting to P57 million and additional paid-in capital of P1.2 billion, net
of P138 million transaction cost that is accounted for as a reduction in equity.

48, Retained Earnings

a. The BOD approved several declarations of cash dividends amounting to P400 million
in 2007 and P397 million in 2006. Details of the declarations are as follows:

Payable to
Date of Dividend Per  Stockholders of
Declaration Share Record as of Date of Payvment
August 9, 2005 PC.03 June 30, 2005 August 31, 2005
October 21, 2005 0.03  October 31,2005  November 11, 2005
April 17, 2006 (.03 Aprit 17, 2006 April 28 2006
June 22, 2006 0.03 June 22, 2006 July 28, 2006
Jume 21, 2007 0.12 June 21, 2007 August 20, 2007
September 30, 2008 0.10 _ October 15,2008  November 7, 2008

On- September 30, 2008 (audit report date), the BOD approved the declaration of
dividend amounting to P369 million.

b. The balance of the revaluation increment was reclassified to retained eamings on
February 1, 2007 due to loss of control over NRC (see Note §).

29. Commitments and Contingencies

a.  As of June 30, 2008, the Company leases certain parcels of land where its bottling
plants and warehouses are located from third parties and NRC for a period of one o
25 years and are renewable for another one to 25 years. None of these leases includes
contingent rentals. Rent expense pertaining to these leased properties amounted to
P69 million in 2008 and P61 million in 2007 and 2006 each vear (see Notes 15, 17,
18 and 19).
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Future rental commitments under such noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

Company Company Group
2008 2007 2006

{(See Note 8) (SeeNotc8) (See Note 8)
Less than one year 74,020 Po2,676 P53,133
Between one and five vears 239.534 470,329 193,285
More than five years 227,138 41,748 28,154

P540,692 P574,753 P274,572

b.  The Company is a party to a number of lawsuits and claims relating to tax, labor and
other issues arising out of the normal course of its business. Management and its tax
and legal counsels believe that the outcome of these lawsuits and claims will niot

materially affect the financial position, financial performance or liquidity of the
Company.
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Sohedite C. Noh-Curmnt Marketabic Equity Seturities, Oihar Long-Tarm Investwants in Stock, and Othar invastmants

Tiaeme of fsEuling Gy s AEIplen of INvesiment | Hurber of shors e e Equity i oamings - Ger (4| DReTI e S For A, 17 P T I
i principst anwut of (05545 G itvesteos of earminge Ehares {2) or
. Exnds and notes. " {3) [ tha period by investean. prineipn imm
Hanecn Realy Conoration 22,000, 00 5052030 18,811,501 ER5 {35 875
Hamets Holdings 500 245,570 110040 LR
Total J85473340 20,026,347 - . - 52553297

Date| ()

RECK1iveD
PATROCINIO L. BET

BUREAU OF L3 FENAL R v,

LARGE TAXPAYTRS SPWVICH

LABGE TAXPAYERK /5% ¢

T VIR




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
Bchedule D. Indebtedness of Unconzolidated Subsidiaries and Affillates

"Name of Affliates o1

Balance 3
beoinning of
pariod

NOT APPLICABLE




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHIL IPPINES, INC.

Schedule E. Property, Plant and Equigmient 1

Crmsaibeation (2] Bepihing belence Adcitiong 31 cost @) | R airar @ [ Viansters - adons | Enii e
' (datuctions) (5) Frwig Belance

Mashinary and (ther Bouiprnent
Bm:::ngndi :?Sh‘:: ;mprwemanm 4'%2:::?32 ?x::;::gﬁﬁw (?:::;:’ggg il ey
Funiizes and Fixtures “:,2:;'3702 @ ‘24:2‘263 (11'933"374) (?zgg:éggg} v
Funy 50, LA 818 i L), 212,226,361
5,982,488,417 1,308 818,253 {74.133,671) - .12? T 1:2;323?
T 9

LARCE TAXFPAYTRE SERVICE
LARGE 'J!L‘E'F.ﬂ’mﬁﬁﬁ"im I:?IVlSIﬂN H

“BURE AL wt AN EL AN AL WEYENUE ’

pate! 0CT 392008 SDS

. S
RECEIVED

| PATROCINIG L. BETY.




FEPS-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, ING.
Schedule F. Acocumuiated Dapreciation

- -
Tesenphon t1) Béginning Balarce | AGTIONS CErgad 10 ] FeUramanty Other Enling bakancas
COsts and expenses chargez .
Add (deduct)

thascribg
Machinary and Oher Equipment 3,363,518,91 823,149 488 {52,874,181) 3,803, 704,197
Buildings and Leashold Improvemens F40.008 817 36,114,997 (5,105 284y 411'595'450
Furniture srd Fixtures 20,274,137 TAT 178 21‘021 .313
Toty 3,794,381,365 - 560,014,583 (57 079,465) - 4,476, 415,062

Tt b
l‘iﬁ%“-‘!(g&kf&?ﬂ“ R!“I fu l

LARGE Ta¥ravean o377
pae| OCI Q372008 7
EC g o s L4

r}mocmu L BETE.




PEF3ZI-COLA PRODUCTS FHILIPPINES, ING.
Seheduie G. intangible Aszels - Other Asgets

Ceseription (1) “Begining Salance Addtiion at GEt Eﬁarged e cost ﬁﬁargad 3 Ciner chariges Em}mg Dalanee ||
(= and expenses | other accounta additions
(dedudtions)

Char Agaats
oz fived aagota - net 443,518

: 807
nput 3% on capital goods 02,714,223 k! 22'!‘33; byt
Mizo=lian=ous Invesiments and dap 26,339,165 51553'131 oo
Miggeliasos: receivables - long term 327053 ,El:l*l '233 e
MIScelianaais asets 8,085,831 {7, 617'525) iszgisgg
Total 137,262,820 - - - 77,056 136,039,878




PEPSI-COLA PRODUGTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
Scheduie H, Long Terrm Debt

I Hie of Issue and tyPe JAmount authorized by  JAMoUN: shown Gnder Gamton— T 5 own Gnder Gaption
of obligation i “Current portion of long-term debt* MLan

g-Term Debt” in related
i related balance sheet balance sheet

re—

NOT APPLICABLE

PPt L .o -
lmmmgrg qrr Eéh TERANAL REVENDE ;
) - TANPAYERR 1T

MT&F&W}}L‘S- LIRVICE

v _-:i‘wﬂ‘r.‘.-\.?{*{«‘_nl VIEION §
Ihte} OCT g3 2008  sps.

- j
RECY;: vy
L. PATROC!NIN ¢, BETE,




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC,

Schedule I. indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties {(Long-Term Loans fram Related Campanies)

ﬂ fame oi aiitiate |

Balange at beginning 0
patiod

alance at eng of perio

(2

NOT APPLICABL E

I BUREAU OF ANV ERNAL REVENUE
LARGE TAXPAVERS SERVICE
LAMGE TANPAYERS ASTIFTA Y IAVISIONT

e
m‘ 0CT 53 2008 jsns!

BRRULIVED
| PATROCINIO L. BETE .




PEPSEI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
Schedule J. Guarantaas of Sectiritiss of Other lssuers{4)

D —

Nature 6 guatantes £

puarantesd and
which this statermnent i= filad mtatanding {2) statarment Is filed

NOT APPLICABLE

_ BURKAL s BNEERNAL Wy s 1.

LARGK ."Axrﬂ\'f_‘“g P N
LARGE TAXPAVERS cigir, . WE&:&-A

Date) OCT 30008 o
RiCp. g
__PATROCTNVIO k,ji‘i:’i‘?{




PEPELCOLA PROGUCTS PHILPPINES, ING.
Echedule K. Capital Stock (1)

T B T T B T T T W T Numbar of shargs ek | Ciracions. oiaers e
autherized oatandity at shown under renervad for options, by affiliates (3 W BRDioyEes
related balande shast caption | warrants, conversion '
and athar rights

Common Shams 5,000,000,000 4,692,772 278 B 8,518,800, 585 20,220,608 154,871,802




